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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PATRIOT NATIONAL, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands)
June 30,
2016
(Unaudited)

Assets
Current Assets
Cash
Equity and fixed income security investments
Total cash and investments
Restricted cash
Fee income receivable
Fee income receivable from related party
Net receivable from related parties
Other current assets
Total current assets
Fixed assets, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Forward purchase asset
Deferred tax asset, net
Advance on facilitation agreement
Other long term assets
Total Assets

$

$

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Deferred claims administration services income
Net advanced claims reimbursements
Income taxes payable
Current earn-out payable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Deferred purchase consideration
Revolver borrowings outstanding
Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of capital lease obligation
Total current liabilities
Earn-out payable
Notes payable, net of deferred loan fees
Warrant redemption liability
Total Liabilities
Equity
Preferred stock, $.001 par value; 100,000 shares authorized, no shares issued
and outstanding as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015
Common stock, $.001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized, 26,832 issued
and 26,390 outstanding as of June 30, 2016 and 28,105 issued and 27,550 outstanding
as of December 31, 2015
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total Patriot National, Inc. Stockholders' Equity
Less Non-controlling interest
Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

$

12,117
—
12,117
20,769
8,408
27,239
1,622
2,450
72,605
5,018
121,688
78,859
51,883
12,529
1,770
11,337
355,689

$

9,743
3,723
3,751
6,145
39,198
500
33,932
6,188
1,025
104,205
6,837
95,359
51,883
258,284

$

$

—

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,
2015

21
113,299
(15,745 )
97,575
(170 )
97,405
355,689 $

8,372
3,173
11,545
16,055
8,159
27,036
499
2,046
65,340
5,092
118,141
75,681
28,120
—
2,000
11,428
305,802

10,639
1,835
2,996
10,556
32,809
6,128
18,032
5,500
2,232
90,727
1,827
98,648
28,120
219,322

—

21
119,999
(33,305 )
86,715
(235 )
86,480
305,802

PATRIOT NATIONAL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

Revenues
Fee income
Fee income from related party
Total fee income and fee income from related party
Net investment income
Net realized losses on investments
Total Revenues
Expenses
Salaries and related expenses
Commission expense
Outsourced services
Other operating expenses
Acquisition costs
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Stock compensation expense
Decrease in fair value of earn-out liability
Total Expenses
Net Income (Loss) before income tax (benefit) expense
Income tax (benefit) expense
Net Income (Loss) Including Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiary
Net Income attributable to non-controlling interest in subsidiary
Net Income (Loss)
Earnings Per Common Share
Basic
Diluted
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding
Basic
Diluted

$

$
$

40,483
15,987
56,470
—
—
56,470

22,341
10,991
3,625
9,501
411
1,376
4,700
1,277
(1,932 )
52,290
4,180
(10,007 )
14,187
28
14,159 $
0.46
0.45
30,903
31,640

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

$

26,932
20,456
47,388
35
(91 )
47,332
17,765
8,494
2,792
6,954
2,315
605
3,392
3,670
—
45,987
1,345
288
1,057
37
1,020
0.04
0.04
26,390
26,793

PATRIOT NATIONAL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

Revenues
Fee income
Fee income from related party
Total fee income and fee income from related party
Net investment income
Net realized losses on investments
Total Revenues
Expenses
Salaries and related expenses
Commission expense
Outsourced services
Other operating expenses
Acquisition costs
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Stock compensation expense
Decrease in fair value of earn-out liability
Decrease in fair value of warrant redemption liability
Costs related to extinguishment of debt (1)
Total Expenses
Net Income (Loss) before income tax benefit
Income tax benefit
Net Income (Loss) Including Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiary
Net Income attributable to non-controlling interest in subsidiary
Net Income (Loss)
Earnings Per Common Share
Basic
Diluted
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding
Basic
Diluted

$

$
$

80,900 $
40,437
121,337
35
(295 )
121,077

45,301
45,079
90,380
36
(91 )
90,325

45,981
24,127
7,195
19,298
1,025
2,788
9,417
2,701
(1,932 )
—
—
110,600
10,477
(7,148 )
17,625
65
17,560 $

32,233
17,383
5,254
13,285
2,919
1,863
5,695
6,205
—
(1,385 )
13,681
97,133
(6,808 )
(3,064 )
(3,744 )
52
(3,796 )

0.60
0.59
29,155
29,807

$

(0.15 )
(0.15 )
25,601
25,601

(1) Costs related to extinguishment of debt include $4.3 million of early payment penalties and $9.3 million associated with the write-off of
related deferred financing fees and original issue discounts.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PATRIOT NATIONAL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)
(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015
Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of loan costs in interest expense
Amortization of facilitation agreement
Decrease in fair value of warrant redemption liability
Decrease in fair value of earn-out liability
Net realized losses on investments
Stock compensation expense
Deferred tax benefit from release of valuation allowance
Exercise of stock awards
Write-off of deferred financing and original issue discounts
Provision for uncollectible fee income
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Fee income receivable
Fee income receivable from related party
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:
Net payable to related parties
Deferred claims administration services income
Net advanced claims reimbursements
Income taxes payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Investment Activities:
Net increase in restricted cash
Purchase of equity securities
Proceeds from sale of equity securities
Purchase of fixed assets and other long-term assets
Acquisitions, net of $28 and $2,248 cash acquired in 2016 and 2015, respectively
Net Cash Used in Investment Activities
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from initial public offering, net
Proceeds from senior secured term loans, net of fees
Repayment of senior secured term loans
Payment of loan fees
Payment of costs for initial public offering
Revolver facility borrowings
Revolver facility repayments
Payment of acquisition earn-outs
Payment of deferred purchase consideration
Repurchase of common stock
Repayment of note payable
Repayment of capital lease obligation
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities
Increase in cash
Cash, beginning of period
Cash, end of period
Supplemental Cash Flow Data
Interest Paid
Income Taxes Paid

$

$

$

(3,744 )

9,417
312
230
—
(1,932 )
295
2,701
(12,529 )
(157 )
—
230

5,695
144
—
(1,385 )
—
91
6,205
—
—
9,342
301

996
(203 )
(537 )

(5,016 )
(4,615 )
(1,172 )

(1,123 )
(896 )
1,888
755
6,171
23,243

1,703
(147 )
3,590
(15,025 )
8,677
4,644

(4,714 )
(300 )
3,178
(2,211 )
(8,969 )
(13,016 )

(4,017 )
(3,648 )
264
(2,824 )
(47,452 )
(57,677 )

—
—
(2,750 )
(150 )
—
15,900
—
(5,214 )
(4,350 )
(8,711 )
—
(1,207 )
(6,482 )
3,745
8,372
12,117 $

98,275
58,791
(750 )
—
(2,479 )
43,150
(17,568 )
—
—
—
(119,573 )
(1,171 )
58,675
5,642
4,251
9,893

$

2,470

$

1,638

$

4,626

$

12,652

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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17,625

PATRIOT NATIONAL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
(In thousands)
(Unaudited)

Patriot National, Inc. Stockholders' Equity
Additional
Common Stock
Treasury
Paid In
Accumulated
Shares
Amount
Stock
Capital
Deficit

Balance, January 1, 2016
Repurchase of common stock
Retirement of treasury stock
Non-cash stock compensation
Purchase of minority interest
in MPCS Pvt Ltd
Issuance of common stock for deferred
purchase consideration
Restricted stock awards issued,
net of forfeitures
Balance before Net Income
Net Income
Balance, June 30, 2016

28,105 $
(1,360 )
—
—

21
—
—
—

—

—

—

—

—

—

87
26,832
—
26,832

—
21
—
21

—
—
—
—

$

$

$

— $ 119,999 $
(8,711 )
—
8,711
(8,711 )
—
2,701
(1,096 )
563
(157 )
113,299
—
$ 113,299 $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NonControlling
Interest

(33,305 ) $
—
—
—

(235 ) $
—
—
—

—

—

—

—

—
(33,305 )
17,560
(15,745 ) $

—
(235 )
65
(170 ) $

Total
Equity
(Deficit)

86,480
(8,711 )
—
2,701
(1,096 )
563
(157 )
79,780
17,625
97,405

PATRIOT NATIONAL, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Description of Business
Patriot National, Inc. (“Patriot National” or the “Company”) is an independent national provider of comprehensive technology-enabled
outsourcing solutions that help insurance carriers, employers and other clients mitigate risk, comply with complex regulations, and save time and
money. We offer end-to-end insurance related and specialty services that allow our clients to improve efficiencies and reduce expenses through
our value-added processes. The core of our value proposition includes the benefit of a “one-stop” solution with our broad array of offered
services, scalable state-of-the-art technology, and support for complex business and regulatory processes.
We principally offer two types of services: front-end services, such as brokerage, underwriting and policyholder services, and back-end
services, such as claims adjudication and administration. We provide our services either on an individual basis, as bundles of two or more services
tailored to a client’s specific needs or on a turnkey basis where we provide a comprehensive set of front-end and back-end services to a client. We
also offer specialty services currently including technology outsourcing and other IT services, as well as employment pre-screening and
background checks. As a service company, we do not assume any underwriting or insurance risk. Our revenue is primarily fee-based, most of
which is contractually committed or highly recurring.
Patriot National is headquartered in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida.
Basis of Presentation
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain
information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual financial statements have been omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations.
Included for comparative purposes are our consolidated financial statements for the six month period ended June 30, 2015.
The unaudited consolidated financial statements included herein are, in the opinion of management, prepared on a basis consistent with our
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 and include all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of the information set forth. The quarterly results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be
reported for subsequent quarters or the full year. These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.
In the preparation of our unaudited consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2016, management evaluated all material subsequent events or
transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date through the date on which the financial statements were issued for potential recognition or
disclosure therein.
For the Company’s two consolidated subsidiaries, Contego Services Group, LLC (“Contego Services Group”) that is 97% owned, and
DecisionUR, LLC (“DecisionUR”) that is 98.8% owned, the third party equity interests are referred to as non-controlling interests. The portion of
the third party members’ equity (deficit) of Contego Services Group and DecisionUR are presented as non-controlling interests in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2016 and consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015. The Company discloses
the following three measures of net income (loss): (i) net income (loss), including non-controlling interest in subsidiary, (ii) net income (loss)
attributable to non-controlling interest in subsidiary, and (iii) net income (loss).

2.

Effect of Recently Issued Financial Accounting Standards

In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-09, “Improvements to
Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting”, an update to Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718, Compensation – Stock
Compensation. This new accounting guidance requires that all companies recognize the income tax effects of awards in the income statement when
the awards vest or are settled, rather than maintaining an additional paid-in capital (APIC) pool and recognizing the tax benefits in excess of
compensation costs through equity. As it relates to forfeitures, the guidance allows for companies to choose whether to continue to estimate
forfeitures or account for forfeitures as they occur. ASU 2016-09 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted and the new guidance may be applied either retrospectively or on a prospective basis. The
Company is currently reviewing the guidance, and the impact from its adoption on our consolidated financial statements cannot be determined at
this time.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, intended to improve financial reporting about leasing transactions. ASU 2016-02 affects all
companies and other organizations that lease assets such as real estate, airplanes, and manufacturing equipment. ASU 2016-02 will require
organizations that lease assets—referred to as “lessees”—to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and
6

liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those leases. Under the new guidance, a lessee will be required to recognize assets and liabilities
for leases with lease terms of more than 12 months. Consistent with current Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the recognition,
measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or
operating lease. However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the balance sheet—ASU 2016-02 will
require both types of leases to be recognized on the balance sheet. ASU 2016-02 also will require disclosures to help investors and other financial
statement users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. These disclosures include qualitative and
quantitative requirements, providing additional information about the amounts recorded in the financial statements.
ASU 2016-02 will take effect for public companies for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,
2018. For all other organizations, ASU 2016-02 will take effect for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early application will be permitted for all organizations. The Company is currently reviewing the impact
that implementing this guidance will have.
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes,” which simplifies the presentation of
deferred income taxes by requiring deferred tax assets and liabilities be classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet. The updated standard is
effective for us beginning on January 1, 2017 with early application permitted as of the beginning of any interim or annual reporting period. We
adopted the new guidance on January 1, 2016, which did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-16, “Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments”, an update to ASC
Topic 805, Business Combinations. This update requires that an acquirer recognize adjustments to the provisional amounts that are identified
during the measurement period in the reporting period in which the adjusting amounts are determined. The amendment requires that the acquirer
record, in the same period’s financial statements, the effect on earnings of changes in depreciation, amortization, or other income effects, if any, as
a result of the change to the provisional amounts, calculated as if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition date. The amendments in
this update require an entity to present separately on the face of the income statement or disclose in the notes the portion of the amount recorded
in current period earnings by line item that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts
had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, including interim
periods within those fiscal years. The update should be applied prospectively to adjustments to provisional amounts that occur after the effective
date of this update with earlier application permitted for financial statements that have not been issued. We adopted the new guidance on January
1, 2016, which did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs”. The update requires that debt issuance
costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt
liability instead of being presented as an asset. The update requires retrospective application. ASU 2015-03 is effective for fiscal years, and interim
reporting periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015. We adopted this new guidance beginning January 1, 2016.
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15 regarding ASC Topic 205, Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern. The
updated guidance related to determining whether substantial doubt exists about an entity's ability to continue as a going concern. The amendment
provides guidance for determining whether conditions or events give rise to substantial doubt that an entity has the ability to continue as a going
concern within one year following issuance of the financial statements and requires specific disclosures regarding the conditions or events leading
to substantial doubt. The updated guidance is effective for annual reporting periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2016. Earlier adoption is permitted, but we do not anticipate electing early adoption. We do not expect the adoption of this
guidance to have a material impact on our combined financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 regarding ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard provides
principles for recognizing revenue for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers with the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASB issued a deferral of effective date for this standard. For public
companies this standard applies to annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods within that
reporting period, and early adoption is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the accounting, transition and disclosure requirements of the
standard and cannot currently estimate the financial statement impact of adoption.

3.

Business Combinations

The Company completed one acquisition during the six-month period ended June 30, 2016. We acquired substantially all of the net assets of
Mid Atlantic Insurance Services, Inc. in a cash transaction, and have accounted for it using the acquisition method for recording business
combinations.
7

The total purchase price was comprised of the following consideration (in thousands):

Cash
Paid

Name and Effective Date of Acquisition (In thousands):

Mid Atlantic Insurance Services, Inc (January 28, 2016)

$

7,901

Stock
Issued

$

—

Accrued
Liability

Recorded
Earnout
Payable

Maximum
Potential
Earnout
Payable

$

$

$

926

7,750

8,500

Total
Recorded
Purchase
Price

$

15,651

In addition to the Mid Atlantic acquisition, the Company consummated the purchase of the minority interest in Mehta and Pazol Consulting
Services Private Limited (“MPCS”) in the amount of $1.1 million. In connection with the acquisition of Vikaran Solutions, LLC on April 1, 2015, we
also agreed to purchase all of the outstanding stock of MPCS, an Indian company which holds Vikaran’s software development center located in
Pune, India, for a purchase price of approximately $1.5 million. During 2015, we consummated the purchase of 51% of the MPCS stock, treated as a
deemed dividend for the common control interest contributed by Mr. Mariano. Effective with the acquisition of the remaining interest on April 19,
2016, the Company now holds 100% of the MPCS stock.
The “maximum potential earnout payable” disclosed in the foregoing table represents the maximum amount of additional consideration that
could be paid pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement for the applicable acquisition. The “recorded earnout payable” disclosed in the
foregoing table are primarily based upon the estimated future operating results of the acquired entity over a five-year period subsequent to the
acquisition date. The recorded earnout payable is measured at fair value as of the acquisition date and is included on that basis in the total
recorded purchase price in the foregoing table. We will record subsequent changes in the fair value of these estimated earnout obligations in our
statement of operations when incurred.
The fair value of these earnout obligations is based on the present value of the expected future payments to be made to the sellers of the
acquired entities in accordance with the provisions outlined in the respective purchase agreements, which is a Level 3 fair value measurement, as
discussed further in Note 11, Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities. In determining fair value, we estimated the acquired entity’s future
performance using financial projections developed by management for the acquired entity and market participant assumptions that were derived for
revenue growth and/or profitability. We estimated future payments using the earnout formula and performance targets specified in each purchase
agreement and these financial projections. We then discounted these payments to present value using a risk-adjusted rate that takes into
consideration market-based rates of return that reflect the ability of the acquired entity to achieve the targets. Changes in financial projections,
market participant assumptions for revenue growth and/or profitability, or the risk-adjusted discount rate, would result in a change in the fair value
of recorded earnout obligations.
The Company recorded income of $1.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 related to a decrease in the fair value of earnout
obligations. The decrease in fair value reflects the final computations and management estimates of certain earnouts pursuant to the respective
purchase agreements for acquisitions as of June 30, 2016.
The aggregate amount of maximum earnout obligations related to acquisitions as of June 30, 2016 was $17.5 million, of which $13.0 million was
recorded in our consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2016, based on the aggregate estimated fair value of the expected future payments to be
made. In addition, the aggregate amount of deferred purchase consideration recorded on our balance sheet as of June 30, 2016 was $0.5 million.
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The following is a summary of the aggregate estimated fair values of the net assets acquired at the date of the acquisition made during the six
months ended June 30, 2016:
In thousands

Total

Assets Acquired:
Cash
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Fixed assets
Other assets
Goodwill
Intangible assets:
Customer & carrier relationships
Service contracts
Non-compete agreements
Developed technology
Trade name portfolio
Total intangible assets
Total assets acquired
Liabilities assumed
Total net assets acquired

$

$

28
—
1,481
50
—
4,893
9,205
—
120
—
800
10,125
16,577
926
15,651

The net assets acquired are preliminary and subject to measurement period adjustments.
In accordance with FASB ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other, intangible assets, which are comprised of the estimated fair value of the
service contracts acquired, customer and carrier relationships, non-compete agreements, developed technology and trade names are being
amortized over the respective estimated life, ranging from two to ten years, in a manner that, in management’s opinion, reflects the pattern in which
the intangible asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be realized. Intangible assets are tested for impairment at least annually (more
frequently if certain indicators are present). In the event that management determines that the value of the intangible asset has become impaired,
the Company will incur an accounting charge for the amount of impairment during the fiscal quarter in which the determination is made.
Provisional estimates of fair value and the allocation of the purchase price are established at the time of each acquisition and are subsequently
reviewed within the first year of operations, the measurement period, following the acquisition date to determine the necessity for adjustments. The
fair value of the tangible assets and liabilities for each applicable acquisition at the acquisition date approximated their carrying values. We estimate
the fair value as the present value of the benefits anticipated from ownership of the subject customer list in excess of returns required on the
investment in contributory assets necessary to realize those benefits. The rate used to discount the net benefits was based on a risk-adjusted rate
that takes into consideration market-based rates of return and reflects the risk of the asset relative to the acquired business. These discount rates
generally ranged from 17% to 30% for our acquisitions through June 30, 2016. The fair value of non-compete agreements was established using
estimated financial projections for the acquired company based on market participant assumptions and various non-compete scenarios.
Customer and carrier relationships, non-compete agreements and trade names related to our acquisitions are amortized using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives (ten years for customer and carrier relationships, one to two years for non-compete agreements and five to
seven years for trade names), while goodwill is not subject to amortization. We use the straight-line method to amortize these intangible assets
because the pattern of their economic benefits cannot be reasonably determined with any certainty. We review all of our intangible assets for
impairment periodically (at least annually) and whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets
may not be recoverable. In reviewing intangible assets, if the fair value is less than the carrying amount of the respective (or underlying) asset, an
indicator of impairment would exist, and further analysis would be required to determine whether or not a loss would need to be charged against
current period earnings. Based on the results of impairment reviews during the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, no impairments
were required.
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Our consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2016 include the operations of the acquired entity from the acquisition
date totaling $2.6 million of revenues and $0.2 million of net loss.
The following is a summary of the unaudited pro forma historical results, as if the entities acquired in 2015 and 2016 had been acquired at
January 1, 2015 (in thousands, except per share data):
Six Months Ended June 30,
In thousands (except per share data)

2016

Total revenues
Net income (loss)
Basic net income (loss) per share
Diluted net income (loss) per share

2015

121,612
17,562
0.60
0.59

$
$

118,159
(2,356 )
(0.09 )
(0.09 )

$
$

This unaudited supplemental pro forma financial information includes the results of operations of acquired businesses presented as if they had
been combined as of January 1, 2015. The unaudited supplemental pro forma financial information has been provided for illustrative purposes only.
The unaudited supplemental pro forma financial information does not purport to be indicative of the actual results that would have been achieved
by the combined companies for the periods presented, or of the results that may be achieved by the combined companies in the future. Future
results may vary significantly from the results reflected in the following unaudited supplemental pro forma financial information because of future
events and transactions, as well as other factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s control.

4.

Equity and Fixed Income Security Investments

Equity and fixed income security investments are carried at fair value. We classify these investments as a trading portfolio with changes to the
fair value of investments marked-to-market value and reflected in the aggregate net income or loss for the period incurred. The trading portfolio is
utilized to generate investment income with available cash on hand.
As of December 31, 2015 the fair value of our investments was $3.2 million. There were no investments held as of June 30, 2016.

5.

Fixed Assets and Other Long Term Assets

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for computer equipment, software, and furniture
and fixtures are capitalized and depreciated on a straight-line basis over a five, three, and seven year estimated useful lives, respectively.
Expenditures for building are capitalized and depreciated on a straight-line basis over a thirty-nine year estimated useful life. Expenditures for
leasehold improvements on office space and facilities are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, our major classes of fixed assets consisted of the following:
June 30,
2016

In thousands

December 31,
2015

(Unaudited)

Fixed Assets
Computer equipment, software and furniture and fixtures
Building
Leasehold improvements
Total fixed assets
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

$

$

8,718 $
1,428
3,820
13,966
(8,948 )
5,018 $

8,124
1,428
3,733
13,285
(8,193 )
5,092

Other Long Term Assets
Other long term assets, which are solely comprised of capitalized policy and claims administration system development costs, are also stated at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for capitalized policy and claims administration system development costs are capitalized and
depreciated on a straight line basis over a five-year estimated useful life.
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As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, other long term assets consisted of the following:
June 30,
2016

In thousands

December 31,
2015

(Unaudited)

Other long term assets
Capitalized policy and claims administration system development costs
Less accumulated depreciation
Other long term assets, net of accumulated depreciation

$

19,312 $
(7,975 )
11,337 $

$

17,712
(6,284 )
11,428

We periodically review all fixed assets and other long term assets that have finite lives for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation
and amortization of assets disposed of are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in earnings.

6.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested at least
annually for impairment (or more frequently if certain indicators are present or management otherwise believes it is appropriate to do so). In the
event that management determines that the value of goodwill has become impaired, we will record a charge for the amount of impairment during the
fiscal quarter in which the determination is made. We determined that there was no impairment as of June 30, 2016.
The Company acquired $4.9 million of goodwill during the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 as a result of the acquisitions discussed in
Note 3, Business Combinations. Changes in goodwill are summarized as follows:

In thousands

Balance as of December 31, 2015
Goodwill acquired
Acquisition adjustments
Balance as of June 30, 2016

$

$

118,141
4,893
(1,346 )
121,688

For the six months ended June 30, 2016, the Company recorded measurement period adjustments to Goodwill of $1.3 million, which reflects an
increase in the carrying amount of tangible net assets related to certain acquisitions. Provisional estimates of fair value of the tangible assets and
liabilities for each applicable acquisition at the acquisition date were established and reviewed within the first year of operation.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets that have finite lives are amortized over their useful lives. The company acquired $10.1 million of intangible assets during the
six-month period ended June 30, 2016 as a result of the acquisitions discussed in Note 3, Business Combinations. The intangible assets, their
original fair values, and their net book values are detailed below as of the dates presented:

In thousands

Gross Asset

June 30, 2016
Accumulated
Amortization

Net Asset

December 31, 2015
Accumulated
Gross Asset Amortization
Net Asset

(Unaudited)

Intangible Assets
Service contracts
Customer and carrier relationships
Non-compete agreements
Developed technology
Trade names
Total

$

$

35,120
40,243
4,860
13,268
3,829
97,320

$

$

(8,402 ) $
(3,894 )
(2,716 )
(2,972 )
(477 )
(18,461 ) $
11

26,718
36,349
2,144
10,296
3,352
78,859

$

$

35,120
31,039
4,739
13,268
3,029
87,195

$

$

(6,204 ) $
(1,947 )
(1,505 )
(1,647 )
(211 )
(11,514 ) $

28,916
29,092
3,234
11,621
2,818
75,681

The table below reflects the estimated amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets for each of the next five years and thereafter:
June 30,
2016

In thousands

Amortization expense
2016 (remaining six months)
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter
Total

7.

(Unaudited)

$

$

7,029
12,554
11,629
11,629
9,984
26,034
78,859

Notes Payable and Lines of Credit
As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, notes payable were comprised of the following:
June 30,
2016

In thousands

December 31,
2015

(Unaudited)

BMO Senior Secured Term Loans
Less current portion of notes payable
Less deferred loan fees
Notes Payable

$

$

103,750 $
(6,188 )
(2,203 )
95,359 $

106,500
(5,500 )
(2,352 )
98,648

Senior Secured Credit Facility
On January 22, 2015, we entered into a Credit Agreement with BMO Harris Bank N.A., as administrative agent (the “Administrative Agent”), and
the other lenders party thereto, which provides for a $40.0 million revolving credit facility and a $40.0 million term loan facility (the “Senior Secured
Credit Facility”). The Senior Secured Credit Facility has a maturity of five years, and borrowings thereunder bear interest, at our option, at LIBOR
plus a margin ranging from 250 basis points to 325 basis points or at base rate plus a margin ranging from 150 basis points to 225 basis points.
Margins on all loans and fees will be increased by 2% per annum during the existence of an event of default. The revolving credit facility includes
borrowing capacity available for letters of credit and borrowings on same-day notice, referred to as swing line loans. At any time prior to maturity,
we have the right to increase the size of the revolving credit facility or the term loan facility by an aggregate amount of up to $20.0 million, but in
minimum increments of $5.0 million. As of June 30, 2015, we increased the term loan facility by $20.0 million through two $10.0 million incremental
term loans. Additionally, on August 14, 2015, we entered into a second amendment to our Senior Secured Credit Facility (the “Second
Amendment”) which provides for an additional $50.0 million of term loans plus the ability to increase the term loan by an additional $50.0 million
under certain conditions. The Second Amendment also added a requirement that until we deliver a certificate certifying that (a) our total leverage
ratio is equal to or less than 2.25 to 1.00 and (b) our Adjusted EBITDA for the twelve-months then ended is at least $70.0 million, the outstanding
revolving loans (plus any swing line loans and the aggregate stated amount of all letters of credit) shall not exceed $30.0 million. On December 23,
2015 we entered into a third amendment, which permits Patriot to exercise the provisions of the Rescission and Exchange Agreement for the private
placement of company stock and warrants, and related Back-to-Back Agreement with the selling shareholder, as described in Note 12, Related Party
Transactions. On March 3, 2016, we entered into a fourth amendment, which permits Patriot to repurchase shares of its outstanding common stock
pursuant to certain volume and timing limitations. All other material terms and conditions in the Senior Secured Credit Facility were unchanged by
the amendments.
As of June 30, 2016 the outstanding balance under our Senior Secured Credit Facility was $137.7 million (comprised of $103.8 million
outstanding under the term loan facility and $33.9 million outstanding under the revolving credit facility). Accordingly, we had $6.1 million available
to borrow under the revolving credit facility.
In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the Senior Secured Credit Facility, we are required to pay a commitment fee to the
Administrative Agent for the ratable benefit of the lenders under the revolving credit facility in respect of the unutilized commitments thereunder,
ranging from 35 basis points to 50 basis points, depending on specified leverage ratios. With
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respect to letters of credit, we are also required to pay a per annum participation fee equal to the applicable LIBOR margin on the face amount of
each letter of credit as well as a fee equal to 0.125% on the face amount of each letter of credit issued (or the term of which is extended). This latter
0.125% fee is payable to the issuer of the letter of credit for its own account, along with any standard documentary and processing charges
incurred in connection with any letter of credit.
The term loan facility amortizes quarterly beginning the first full quarter after the closing date at a rate of 5% per annum of the original principal
amount during the first two years, 7.5% per annum of the original principal amount during the third and fourth years and 10% per annum of the
original principal amount during the fifth year, with the remainder due at maturity. Principal amounts outstanding under the revolving credit facility
are due and payable in full at maturity. In the event of any sale or other disposition by us or our subsidiaries guaranteeing the Senior Secured
Credit Facility (as described below) of any assets with certain exceptions, we are required to prepay all proceeds received from such a sale towards
the remaining scheduled payments of the term loan facility.
Additionally, all obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facility (as described below) are guaranteed by all of our existing and future
subsidiaries, other than foreign subsidiaries to the extent the assets of such foreign subsidiaries do not exceed 5% of our and our subsidiaries’
total assets on a consolidated basis, and secured by a first-priority perfected security interest in substantially all of our and our guaranteeing
subsidiaries’ tangible and intangible assets, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, including a pledge of 100% of the stock of each guarantor.
The Senior Secured Credit Facility contains certain covenants that, among other things and subject to significant exceptions, limit our ability
and the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to engage in certain business and financing activities and that require us to maintain certain financial
covenants, including requirements to maintain (i) a maximum total leverage ratio of total outstanding debt to adjusted EBITDA for the most
recently-ended four fiscal quarters of no more than 300% and (ii) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of adjusted EBITDA to the sum of cash
interest expense plus income tax expense (or less any income tax benefits) plus capital expenditures, plus dividends, share repurchases and other
restricted payments, plus regularly scheduled principal payments of debt for the same period of a least 150% for the most recently ended four
quarters. The Senior Secured Credit Facility allows us to pay dividends in an amount up to 50% of our net income if certain other financial
conditions are met.
The Senior Secured Credit Facility contains other restrictive covenants, including those regarding: indebtedness (including capital leases) and
guarantees; liens; operating leases; investments and acquisitions; loans and advances; mergers, consolidations and other fundamental changes;
sales of assets; transactions with affiliates; no material changes in nature of business; dividends and distributions, stock repurchases, and other
restricted payments; change in name, jurisdiction of organization or fiscal year; burdensome agreements; and capital expenditures.
The Senior Secured Credit Facility also has events of default that may result in acceleration of the borrowings thereunder, including:
(i) nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts (subject to customary grace periods for items other than principal); (ii) failure to perform
or observe covenants set forth in the loan documentation (subject to customary grace periods for certain affirmative covenants); (iii) any
representation or warranty proving to have been incorrect in any material respect when made; (iv) cross-default to other indebtedness and
contingent obligations in an aggregate amount in excess of an amount to be agreed upon; (v) bankruptcy and insolvency defaults (with grace
period for involuntary proceedings); (vi) inability to pay debts; (vii) monetary judgment defaults in excess of an agreed upon amount; (viii) ERISA
defaults; (ix) change of control; (x) actual invalidity or unenforceability of any loan document, any security interest on any material portion of the
collateral or asserted (by any loan party) invalidity or unenforceability of any security interest on any collateral; (xi) actual or asserted (by any loan
party) invalidity or unenforceability of any guaranty; (xii) material unpaid, final judgments that have not been vacated, discharged, stayed or
bonded pending appeal within a specified number of days after the entry thereof; and (xiii) any other event of default agreed to by us and the
Administrative Agent.
As of June 30, 2016, we were in compliance with the financial and other restrictive covenants under our outstanding material debt obligations,
including our Senior Secured Credit Facility.

8.

Capital Lease Obligations

Equipment subject to capital lease is comprised of capitalized policy and claims administration software development costs and related
computer equipment. Monthly payments on the capital lease, which expires on December 3, 2016, were approximately $0.2 million as of December
30, 2016. Payments may be adjusted in connection with a change in the interest rate swap rate quoted in the Bloomberg Swap Rate Report. The
Company’s obligations for future payments on the capital lease as of June 30, 2016, based on the interest rate swap rate in effect on that date, are
as follows:
In thousands

Principal

2016

1,025

13

Interest

Total

14

1,039

9.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock plus the effect of dilutive potential common
shares outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method. Dilutive potential common shares include detachable common stock
warrants and stock-based awards of restricted shares and stock options, and contingent shares attributable to deferred purchase consideration.
The components of basic and diluted EPS are as follows:
Three Months Ended June
30,
In thousands (except earnings per share)

2016

Basic net earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Basic net earnings (loss) per share
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders
Adjustments to net income (loss) applicable to dilutive shares
Net earnings (loss) attributable to diluted shares
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Dilutive effect of warrants, options, and restricted shares
using the treasury stock method
Weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares
outstanding
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share

$
$
$
$

2015

14,159
30,903
0.46

$

14,159
—
14,159
30,903

$

$

$

737

$

Six Months Ended June 30,

31,640
0.45

2016

1,020
26,390
0.04

$

1,020
—
1,020
26,390

$

$

$

403

$

26,793
0.04

2015

17,560
29,155
0.60

$

17,560
—
17,560
29,155

$

$

$

652

$

29,807
0.59

(3,796 )
25,601
(0.15 )
(3,796 )
—
(3,796 )
25,601
—

$

25,601
(0.15 )

On March 3, 2016, the Board of Directors approved a $15 million stock repurchase program. Under the new Repurchase Program, the Company
may repurchase up to a maximum of $15 million of its common stock. Pursuant to the Fourth Amendment to the BMO Credit Facility, the Company
may purchase no more than 1,000,000 shares in any calendar month. Total purchases under the plan as of June 30, 2016 were 1,360,457 shares for a
purchase price of $8.7 million in the open market. As of June 30, 2016, all 1,360,457 of the repurchased shares have been retired and none remain as
treasury shares.
For the six months ended June 30, 2016 there were 1.2 million weighted average stock options that were not dilutive.
Effective on April 7, 2016 the Series B warrants were fixed at 4.9 million shares. The Series B warrants are included in the computation of both
basic and diluted earnings per share from April 7, 2016 until the warrant shares are settled in accordance with ASC 260. The weighted average
impact from the Series B warrants to basic and diluted earnings per share for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was 2.3 million shares. The Series
A warrant shares are included in diluted earnings per share using the treasury stock method for the six months ended June 30, 2016. As a result of
the net income for the six months ended June 30, 2016, basic earnings per share reflect $0.60 per share and the diluted earnings per share was $0.59
per share.
Due to the net loss of $3.8 million reported for the six months ended June 30, 2015, weighted average outstanding detachable common stock
warrants representing 117,865 shares of common stock and restricted shares representing 199,981 shares of common stock were not dilutive. As a
result, basic and diluted earnings per share both reflect a net loss of $0.15 per share for the six months then ended.

10. Stock-Based Compensation
Omnibus Incentive Plan
On January 15, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Patriot National 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Omnibus Incentive Plan”), subject
to and with effect upon approval of such plan by the stockholders of the Company.
The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors determines the participants under the Omnibus Incentive Plan. The Omnibus Incentive
Plan provides for non-qualified and incentive stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units, any or all of which may be made contingent
upon the achievement of performance criteria. Subject to the Omnibus Incentive Plan limits, the compensation committee has the discretionary
authority to determine the size of an award and on May 11, 2015 delegated the authority to Steven Mariano, our President, to award the grants
without the consent of the Compensation Committee.
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Shares of our common stock available for issuance under the Omnibus Incentive Plan include authorized and unissued shares of common stock
or authorized and issued shares of common stock reacquired and held as treasury shares or otherwise, or a combination thereof. The number of
available shares is reduced by the aggregate number of shares that become subject to outstanding awards granted under the Omnibus Incentive
Plan. To the extent that shares subject to an outstanding award granted under either the Omnibus Incentive Plan are not issued or delivered by
reason of the expiration, termination, cancellation or forfeiture of such award or by reason of the settlement of such award in cash, then such shares
will again be available for grant under the Omnibus Incentive Plan. Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholding requirements upon the vesting of
awards other than stock options will also be available for grant under the Omnibus Incentive Plan. Shares that are used to pay the exercise price of
an option, shares delivered to or withheld by us to pay withholding taxes related to stock options, and shares that are purchased on the open
market with the proceeds of an option exercise, may not again be made available for issuance.
Stock Options
In the six months ended June 30, 2016, we issued stock options as incentive compensation for officers and certain key employees. The exercise
price of each stock option is the closing market price of our common stock on the date of grant. The options will vest in three equal annual
installments on the first, second and third anniversaries of grant and expire 10 years after the grant date. The fair values of these stock options were
estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model with the following weighted-average assumptions:
Six Months Ended June 30,
In thousands

2016

Expected dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate (1)
Expected volatility (2)
Expected life in years (3)

2015

0%
0.49 %
33.02 %
3.0

0%
0.49 %
33.02 %
3.0

(1) The risk-free interest rate for the periods within the contractual term of the options is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the
time of the grant.
(2) The expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a stock price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate based primarily on our and
our peers' historical data.
(3) The expected life is the period of time, on average, that participants are expected to hold their options before exercise based primarily on our
historical data.
For the six months ended June 30, 2016, we awarded 68,533 options and 111,876 were forfeited, leaving 1,161,366 outstanding. At June 30, 2016
the intrinsic value of these options was $127 thousand. The fair value of the options at grant date was $16.2 million. Option activity for the six
months ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

In thousands, except weighted-average price and remaining
contractual term

Number of
Shares

Options outstanding at December 31, 2015
Options granted
Options exercised
Options cancelled or forfeited
Options outstanding at June 30, 2016
Options expected to vest at June 30, 2016
Options exercisable at June 30, 2016

1,205
68
—
(112 )
1,161
781
380

WeightedAverage Exercise
Price

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

14.41
6.32
—
14.87
14.09
13.97
13.71

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

8.5
9.8

$
$

—
127

8.2
8.2
8.2

$
$
$

—
—
—

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, we recognized $0.3 million and $0.6 million of stock compensation expense associated with
these options, and there was $1.2 million of total unrecognized stock compensation cost related to unvested stock options that is expected to be
recognized over a period of approximately 1.7 years.
Restricted Stock Awards
In the six months ended June 30, 2016, we issued 101,352 restricted shares as incentive compensation for officers, directors, and certain key
employees, 51,707 restricted shares were forfeited and 161,345 were settled leaving 442,515 remaining restricted shares
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outstanding as of June 30, 2016. The fair market value of outstanding restricted shares at June 30, 2016 was $3.6 million. Grants of restricted shares
for the six months ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:

In thousands, except weighted-average fair value price

Number of Shares

Unvested restricted shares outstanding at December 31, 2015
Restricted shares granted
Restricted shares vested
Restricted shares forfeited
Unvested restricted shares outstanding as of June 30, 2016

554
101
(161 )
(52 )
442

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Value

$
$
$
$
$

14.48
6.16
14.20
15.95
12.50

For the three and six months ending, June 30, 2016, we recognized $0.8 million and $1.7 million of stock compensation expense associated with
these restricted shares, and there was $2.5 million of total unrecognized stock compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock to be
recognized over a period of approximately 1.3 years.
Restricted Stock Units
During the six months ended June 30, 2016, we issued 16,440 restricted stock units, 20,880 were forfeited, 38,286 vested, resulting in 126,384
restricted stock units outstanding as of June 30, 2016. The fair market value of these restricted share units at June 30, 2016 was $1.0 million. During
the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, we recognized $0.2 million and $0.4 million of stock compensation expense associated with these
restricted stock units. Unrecognized stock compensation expense associated with RSUs is $0.8 million and will be recognized over the remaining
contractual lives of these awards, approximately 1.9 years.

In thousands, except weighted-average fair value price

Number of Shares

Unvested restricted stock units outstanding at December 31, 2015
Restricted stock units granted
Restricted stock units vested
Restricted stock units forfeited
Unvested restricted stock units outstanding as of June 30, 2016

169
16
(38 )
(21 )
126

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Value

$
$
$
$
$

15.03
6.82
14.41
14.92
14.17

11. Fair Value Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities
With respect to the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, which include short term investments, notes payable, capital lease obligation,
earnout obligations of acquisitions and warrant redemption liability, the Company has adopted current accounting guidance which establishes the
authoritative definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, creates a fair value hierarchy based on the quality of inputs
used to measure fair value and enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. This guidance defines fair value as the price that
would be paid to transfer the warrant redemption liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As
required under current accounting guidance, the Company has identified and disclosed its financial assets and liabilities in a fair value hierarchy,
which consists of the following three levels:
Definition

Level 1 Observable unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical securities.
Level 2 Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical securities,
including:
(i) quoted prices in active markets for similar securities.
(ii) quoted prices for identical or similar securities in markets that are not active.
(iii) inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the security (e.g., interest rates, yield curves observable at commonly
quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit risks and default rates).
(iv) inputs derived from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs, including the reporting entity’s own data, as long as there is no
contrary data indicating market participants would use different assumptions.
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The Company’s equity and fixed income security investments and forward purchase assets for which carrying values were equal to fair values,
classified by level within the fair value hierarchy, were as follows as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

June 30, 2016 (in thousands)

Common and preferred stocks
Corporate notes and bonds
Forward purchase asset
Total

December 31, 2015 (in thousands)

Common and preferred stocks
Corporate notes and bonds
Forward purchase asset
Total

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Securities
(Level 1)

Fair Value Measurement, Using
Significant
Significant Other
Unobservable
Observable Inputs
Inputs
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

$

$

—
—
—
—

$

$

—
—
—
—

$

$

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Securities
(Level 1)

Fair Value Measurement, Using
Significant
Significant Other
Unobservable
Observable Inputs
Inputs
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

$

$

384
2,789
—
3,173

$

$

—
—
—
—

Total

—
—
51,883
51,883

$

—
—
51,883
51,883

$

Total

—
—
28,120
28,120

$

$

$

384
2,789
28,120
31,293

$

The following is a reconciliation of the fair value of the Company’s financial assets that were measured using significant unobservable (Level 3)
inputs:
Forward
Purchase
Asset

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2016 (in thousands)

Fair value, January 1, 2016
Increase in fair value of forward purchase asset
Fair Value, June 30, 2016

$
$

Total

28,120
23,763
51,883

$

28,120
23,763
51,883

$

The Company’s earnout obligations of acquisitions, deferred purchase consideration, and warrant redemption liability, for which carrying
values were equal to fair values, classified by level within the fair value hierarchy, were as follows as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

June 30, 2016 (in thousands)

Earnout payable on acquisitions
Deferred purchase consideration
Warrant redemption liability
Total

December 31, 2015 (in thousands)

Earnout payable on acquisitions
Deferred purchase consideration
Warrant redemption liability
Total

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Securities
(Level 1)

Fair Value Measurement, Using
Significant
Significant Other
Unobservable
Observable Inputs
Inputs
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

$

$

—
—
—
—

$

$

—
—
—
—

$

$

12,982
500
51,883
65,365

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Securities
(Level 1)

Fair Value Measurement, Using
Significant
Significant Other
Unobservable
Observable Inputs
Inputs
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

$

$

—
—
—
—

$
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$

—
—
—
—

$

$

12,383
6,128
28,120
46,631

Total

$

$

12,982
500
51,883
65,365

Total

$

$

12,383
6,128
28,120
46,631

The following is a reconciliation of the fair value of the Company’s financial liabilities that were measured using significant unobservable (Level
3) inputs:

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2016 (in thousands)

Fair value, January 1, 2016
Record present value earnout payable
on acquisitions
Earnout payments made
Decrease in fair value of earn-out liability
Adjust fair value of earn-out for obligation of seller
Deferred purchase payments made
Equity issued for deferred purchase consideration
Acquisition adjustment to purchase price
Amortize present value discount
on deferred purchase consideration
Increase in fair value of warrant
redemption liability
Fair Value, June 30, 2016

Deferred
Purchase
Consideration

Earnout
Payable

$

12,383

$

7,750
(5,214 )
(1,932 )
(5 )
—
—
—

—
12,982

$

—
—
—
—
(4,350 )
(563 )
(759 )

—

$

6,128

Warrant
Redemption
Liability

—
500

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

44

$

Total

28,120

46,631
7,750
(5,214 )
(1,932 )
(5 )
(4,350 )
(563 )
(759 )

—

$

23,763
51,883

44

$

23,763
65,365

12. Related Party Transactions
Relationship and Transactions with Guarantee Insurance Group and Guarantee Insurance
As of August 3, 2016 Steven M. Mariano, our founder, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, beneficially owned 54.7% of the outstanding
shares of our common stock and substantially all of the outstanding equity of Guarantee Insurance Group. As a result, our transactions with
Guarantee Insurance Group and its subsidiaries, including Guarantee Insurance and GUI, are related party transactions.
Service Fees Received from Guarantee Insurance
We provide brokerage and policyholder services and claims administration services to Guarantee Insurance pursuant to the Services
Agreements and the Program Administrator Agreement. We have been providing a full range of brokerage and policyholder services to Guarantee
Insurance pursuant to the Program Administrator Agreement since August 6, 2014.
Pursuant to the Services Agreements, we provide our services in connection with claims arising out of insurance policies held or underwritten
by Guarantee Insurance. The Services Agreements have various terms and expiration dates ranging from 2018 to 2022, unless otherwise extended
or earlier terminated as provided therein. The fees we receive are based, depending on the service provided, upon a percentage of reference
premium, flat monthly fees, hourly fees or the savings we achieve, among others.
Pursuant to Program Administrator Agreement, we act as Guarantee Insurance’s exclusive general agent for the purpose of underwriting,
issuing and delivering insurance contracts in connection with Guarantee Insurance’s workers’ compensation insurance program. The agreement
with Guarantee Insurance remains in effect until terminated by either party upon 180 days’ prior written notice to the other party for cause.
Guarantee Insurance may also terminate the agreement, in whole or in part, immediately upon written notice to us in the event of our insolvency or
bankruptcy, systematic risk-binding that is not in compliance with the applicable underwriting guidelines or procedures and the occurrence of
certain other events. The fees we receive are based upon premiums written for each account bound with Guarantee Insurance.
A portion of the fees that we receive from Guarantee Insurance pursuant to the Services Agreements and the Program Administrator Agreement
are for Guarantee Insurance’s account (which we recognize as “fee income from related party”) and a portion of the fees are for the account of
reinsurance captive entities to which Guarantee Insurance has ceded a portion of its written risk (which we recognize as “fee income”). See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations—Principal Components of Financial Statements—
Revenue.” As a result, a substantial portion of fee income we recognize from non-related parties is nevertheless derived from our relationship with
Guarantee Insurance.
Fee income from related party for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $16.0 million and $20.5 million, respectively, and
constituted 28% and 43% of total fee income. Fee income derived from our contracts and relationships with Guarantee Insurance for the three
months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $31.3 million and $33.2 million respectively, and
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constituted 55% and 70% of total fee income and fee income from related party for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Fee income from related party for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $40.4 million and $45.1 million, respectively, and constituted
33% and 50% of total fee income and fee income from related party for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Fee income
derived from our contracts and relationships with Guarantee Insurance for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $71.4 million and $68.7
million respectively, and constituted 59% and 76% of total fee income and fee income from related party for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively.
Fee income receivable from related party was $27.2 million as of June 30, 2016 and $27.0 million as of December 31, 2015.
Our prices by customer for our brokerage and policyholder services and claims administration services were unchanged for the three and six
month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and, accordingly, the net increase in fee income was solely related to changes in the volume of
business we managed.
Because fee income from related party for claims administration services is based on the net portion of claims expense retained by Guarantee
Insurance, as described in Note 13, Concentration, the Company’s revenues attributable to contracts with Guarantee Insurance do not necessarily
represent fee income from related party.
During the six months ended June 30, 2016, Patriot completed and amended agreements between its operating subsidiaries and Guarantee
Insurance Company in the normal course of business. These include an agreement and subsequent amendments to the agreement effective
January 1, 2016 between Guarantee and Patriot Underwriters regarding rates for agent commission. Additionally, Patriot National, Inc. executed an
agreement on January 15, 2016 with Guarantee Insurance Group for legal advisory services, for which Patriot received fees of $0.8 million.
Loan Arrangements and Receivable from Affiliates
As of June 30, 2016, we had a net receivable from related parties of $1.6 million due from entities controlled by Mr. Mariano, our founder,
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. As of December 31, 2015, we had a net receivable from related parties amount of approximately $0.5
million due from entities controlled by Mr. Mariano.
In addition, on December 23, 2015, we and Steven M. Mariano amended the Stock Back-to-Back Agreement, pursuant to which, upon the
exercise of the New Warrants, we would purchase a number of shares of our common stock owned by Steven M. Mariano equal to 100% of the
shares to be issued in connection with the exercise by the PIPE investors of the New Warrants.
See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations—Recent Events.”
Statement of Policy Regarding Transactions with Related Persons
Our board of directors has adopted a written Related Person Transaction Policy to assist it in reviewing, approving and ratifying transactions
with related persons and to assist us in the preparation of related disclosures required by the SEC. This Related Person Transaction Policy
supplements our other policies that may apply to transactions with related persons, such as the Corporate Governance Guidelines of our board of
directors and our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.
The Related Person Transaction Policy provides that all transactions with related persons covered by the policy must be reviewed and
approved and ratified by the Audit Committee or disinterested members of the board of directors and that any employment relationship or
transaction involving an executive officer and any related compensation must be approved or recommended for the approval of the board of
directors by the Compensation Committee.
In reviewing transactions with related persons, the Audit Committee or disinterested members of the board of directors will consider all relevant
facts and circumstances, including, without limitation:
● the nature of the related person’s interest in the transaction;
● the material terms of the transaction;
● the importance of the transaction both to the Company and to the related person;
● whether the transaction would likely impair the judgment of a director or executive officer to act in the best interest of the Company;
● whether the value and the terms of the transaction are substantially similar as compared to those of similar transactions previously entered into
by the Company with non-related persons, if any; and
● any other matters that management or the Audit Committee or disinterested directors, as applicable, deem appropriate.
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The Audit Committee or disinterested members of the board of directors, as applicable, will not approve or ratify any related person transaction
unless it shall have determined in good faith that, upon consideration of all relevant information, the related person transaction is in, or is not
inconsistent with, the best interests of the Company. The Audit Committee or the disinterested members of the board of directors, as applicable,
may also conclude, upon review of all relevant information, that the transaction does not constitute a related person transaction and thus that no
further review is required under this policy.
Generally, the Related Person Transaction Policy applies to any current or proposed transaction in which:
● the Company was or is to be a participant;
● the amount involved exceeds $120,000; and
any related person (i.e., a director, director nominee, executive officer, greater than 5% beneficial owner and any immediate family member of
such person) had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

13. Concentration
For the six months ended June 30, 2016, approximately 59% of total combined fee income and fee income from related party was attributable to
contracts with Guarantee Insurance, the Company’s largest customer and a related party, and approximately 6% was attributable to contracts with
the Company’s second largest customer. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, approximately 76% of total combined fee income and fee income
from related revenues was attributable to contracts with Guarantee Insurance, and approximately 9% were attributable to contracts with the
Company’s second largest customer.
As of June 30, 2016, approximately 76% of combined fee income receivable and fee income receivable from related party was attributable to
contracts with Guarantee Insurance and approximately 2% of combined fee income receivable and fee income receivable from related party were
attributable to contracts with the Company’s second largest customer. As of December 31, 2015, approximately 77% of combined fee income
receivable and fee income receivable from related party was attributable to contracts with Guarantee Insurance and approximately 3% of combined
fee income receivable and fee income receivable from related party was attributable to contracts with the Company’s second largest customer.
Because fee income from related party for claims administration services is based on the net portion of claims expense retained by Guarantee
Insurance, the Company’s revenues attributable to contracts with Guarantee Insurance do not necessarily represent fee income from related party.

14. Commitments and Contingencies
Contractual Obligations and Commitments
In connection with the Senior Secured Credit Facility as described in Note 7, Notes Payable and Lines of Credit, the common stock of the
Company and the common stock or units of each of the Company’s wholly and majority owned subsidiaries were pledged as collateral.
On April 13, 2016, Hudson Bay Master Fund Ltd. (“Hudson Bay”) filed suit in the US District Court for the Southern District of New York
against the Company, Steven M. Mariano, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and American Stock Transfer Company, LLC as a nominal
Defendant. Hudson Bay alleges that the Company and Mr. Mariano are in breach of various contracts regarding delivery of price adjustment
warrants, and that Mr. Mariano interfered with those same contracts between the Company and Hudson Bay. Hudson Bay seeks specific
performance of the contracts, monetary damages, and attorney’s fees. On April 14, 2016, CVI Investments Inc.(“CVI”), also filed suit against the
Company in the same court. The CVI suit makes similar allegations of breach of contract regarding the price adjustment warrants. The CVI suit
similarly seeks specific performance of the contracts, monetary damages, and attorney’s fees, as well as injunctive relief.
The Company has filed answers in both actions denying the allegations and asserting defenses. The Company has been indemnified for any
losses related to the warrant agreements by Mr. Mariano.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect on our financial condition,
changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources.
The Company has employment agreements with certain executives and other employees, which provide for compensation and certain other
benefits and for severance payments under certain circumstances. The employment agreements contain clauses that
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become effective upon a change of control of the Company. Upon the occurrence of any of the defined events in the employment agreements, the
Company would be obligated to pay certain amounts to the relevant employees.
The Company maintains cash at various financial institutions, and, at times, balances may exceed federally insured limits. Management does not
believe this results in any material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
In the normal course of business, the Company may be party to various legal actions that management believes will not result in any material
effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

15. Warrant Redemption Liability
The estimated fair value of the redeemable warrants is reflected as warrant redemption liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and the change in the liability is reflected as an increase (decrease) in fair value of warrant redemption
liability in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. In estimating the value of the redeemable warrants and common stock, giving
consideration to all valuation approaches and methods in its analysis and ultimately relying on a variety of established appraisal methods and
techniques, applying a Monte Carlo simulation of estimated value, the guideline public company method in combination with the discounted future
returns method and, as appropriate, the option pricing model using Black Scholes. Various valuation indications are weighted using the ProbabilityWeighted Expected Return Method (PWERM) in accordance with the AICPA’s Accounting and Valuation Guide: Valuation of Privately-HeldCompany Equity Securities Issued as Compensation.
As of June 30, 2016, the estimated fair value of Series A and Series B warrant redemption liabilities was $51.9 million. We estimated the fair value
of New Series A Warrants as of June 30, 2016. The payoff structure of New Series A Warrants can be replicated by purchasing (i) 0.15 units of
Common Stock and (ii) 0.85 units of call option on Common Stock at an adjusted strike price (dollar strike price divided by 85%). The value of call
option was estimated using Black Scholes. The estimated fair value of the New Series B Warrants was determined as the closing share price at June
30, 2016 less the exercise price of $0.01.
On December 13, 2015 we entered into a securities purchase agreement (the “Securities Purchase Agreement”) with Steven M. Mariano, our
President and Chief Executive Officer, and the PIPE investors pursuant to which the PIPE investors purchased (i) 2,500,000 shares of our common
stock from Steven M. Mariano, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $30 million, and (ii) 666,666 shares of our common stock, warrants
to purchase up to an aggregate of 2,083,333 shares of our common stock (the “Old Series A Warrants”) and prepaid warrants for 1,000,000 shares of
our common stock (the “Old Series B Warrants” and, together with the Old Series A Warrants, the “Old Warrants”), for an aggregate purchase
price of approximately $20 million. In addition, we entered into an agreement (the “Stock Back-to-Back Agreement”) with Steven M. Mariano,
pursuant to which, upon the exercise of the Old Warrants, we would purchase a number of shares of our common stock owned by Steven M.
Mariano equal to 60% of the shares to be issued in connection with the exercise by the PIPE investors of the Old Warrants.
On December 23, 2015 we entered into several rescission and exchange agreements (collectively, the “Exchange Agreement”) with Steven M.
Mariano and the PIPE investors pursuant to which (i) we and the PIPE investors rescinded the sale and purchase of 666,666 shares of our common
stock and prepaid warrants for 1,000,000 shares of our common stock and (ii) we exchanged the Old Series A Warrant for new warrants to purchase
up to an aggregate of 3,250,000 shares of our common stock (the “New Series A Warrants”), and the Old Series B Warrant for new prepaid warrants
to purchase a number of shares that the holder could purchase at a price equal to 90% of the lowest 10-day volume-weighted average stock price
during the period commencing on February 1, 2016 through and including the Adjustment Time (as defined in the New Series B Warrants, which we
expect to end at 9:00 A.M. on the tenth trading day after the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K) less the number of shares such holder
purchased, in each case subject to adjustments and limitations pursuant to their terms. Based on the 10-day volume-weighted average stock price
during the period commencing on February 1, 2016 through March 17, 2016 of $4.51, we estimate that 4,889,165 shares of our common stock would
be issuable upon exercise of the New Series B Warrants.
In addition, we and Steven M. Mariano amended the Stock Back-to-Back Agreement, pursuant to which, upon the exercise of the New
Warrants, we would purchase a number of shares of our common stock owned by Steven M. Mariano equal to 100% of the shares to be issued in
connection with the exercise by the PIPE investors of the New Warrants, resulting in no dilution for our existing shareholders.
The New Series A Warrants are exercisable at an exercise price of the lesser of (i) $10.00 and (ii) 85% of the market price of the shares (as defined
in the New Warrants), from July 1, 2016 to December 31, 2020. The New Series B Warrants are exercisable at an exercise price of $0.01 from
December 16, 2015 to December 31, 2020. The exercise price of the New Warrants is subject to adjustment in the case of stock splits, stock
dividends, combinations of shares and similar recapitalization transactions.
In addition, the Exchange Agreement amended the registration rights agreement to provide the PIPE investors with registration rights to
register the shares issuable upon exercise of the New Warrants, subject to penalties and other customary provisions. We also entered into a third
amendment to our existing credit agreement to permit these transactions under the covenants included therein.
21

On December 23, 2015, we also entered into a Voting Agreement with Steven M. Mariano, pursuant to which Steven M. Mariano agreed to vote
in favor of issuances of shares of common stock in the event that, as a result of an increase in the number of shares that may be purchased upon
exercise of the New Warrants to the Adjusted Share Amount (as defined in the New Warrants), such number of shares would exceed the Exchange
Cap (as defined in the New Warrants).
16. Income Taxes
The Company uses an estimated annual effective tax rate method of computing its interim tax provision. Certain items, including those deemed
to be unusual, infrequent or that cannot be reliably estimated, are excluded from the estimated annual effective tax rates. In these cases, the actual
tax expense or benefit applicable to that item is treated discretely and is reported in the same period as the related item.
The effective tax rate is based on forecasted annual pre-tax income, permanent differences and statutory tax rates. For the six months ended
June 30, 2016, the effective income tax rate was 36%.
The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax, as well as income tax in multiple states with heavy concentration in
Florida, California, and Pennsylvania. The net deferred tax asset as of June 30, 2016 was $12.5 million, which is primarily related to intangible asset
amortization of completed acquisitions.
As of December 31, 2015, the Company maintained a valuation allowance for the net deferred tax asset. A valuation allowance is required when
it is considered more likely than not that all or part of the benefit related to such assets will not be realized, considering both positive and negative
evidence. We determined as of December 31, 2015 that it was more likely than not that all or part of the benefit related to such assets would not be
realized, primarily due to uncertainty of future performance for acquired businesses in our projections.
The underlying assumptions we use in forecasting future taxable income require significant judgment and take into account our recent
performance. Such estimates and assumptions could change in the future as more information becomes known which could impact the amounts
reported and disclosed herein. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends on the generation of future taxable income during the periods
in which temporary differences reverse.
As of June 30, 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries released the valuation allowance related to the $12.5 million net deferred tax asset. As a
result of positive evidence from performance during the six months ended June 30, 2016 related to recently acquired businesses, and greater
certainty of forecasts for 2016 and beyond, we determined that it was more likely than not the future tax benefit related to the deferred tax asset will
be realized as of June 30, 2016.
At June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits and no amounts recorded for uncertain tax positions.

17.

Subsequent Events

On August1, 2016, the Issuer stated that a special committee of independent directors (the “Special Committee”) of the Board received and is
considering an offer from Ebix, Inc. (“Ebix”) to acquire 100% of the outstanding stock of the Issuer. The Special Committee is continuing to explore
other strategic alternatives for the Issuer to maximize value for shareholders, including a possible sale of the Issuer. Neither the Board nor the
Special Committee has made a decision to enter into any transaction or other alternative.

ITEM 2.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our Combined
Financial Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2015, and with the information under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.
Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes statements that express our opinions, expectations, estimates, beliefs, plans, objectives, strategies,
assumptions, future revenues or performance, financing needs, business trends or projections regarding future events or future results and
therefore are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A
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of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). These forward-looking statements can
generally be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “seek,”
“project,” “potential,” “intend,” “strive,” “plan,” “may,” “might,” “will,” “would,” or “should” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or
comparable terminology. They appear in a number of places throughout this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and include statements regarding our
intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, prospects,
growth, strategies and the industry in which we operate.
By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that
may or may not occur in the future. Accordingly, there are or will be important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from
those indicated in these statements. Risks related to the Company and our common stock include, but are not limited to the following:
· Because we have a limited operating history as a stand-alone, combined company and business, our historical financial condition and results
of operations are not necessarily representative of the results we would have achieved as a stand-alone, combined, publicly-traded company
and may not be a reliable indicator of our future results.
· Our business may be materially adversely impacted by general economic and labor market conditions.
· The workers’ compensation insurance industry is cyclical in nature, which may affect our overall financial performance.
· We may be more vulnerable to negative developments in the workers’ compensation insurance industry than companies that also provide
outsourced services for other lines of insurance.
· If workers’ compensation claims decline in frequency or severity, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.
· Our total fee income and fee income from related party are currently substantially dependent on our relationships with Guarantee Insurance
and a small number of other insurance carrier clients.
· Our relationship with Guarantee Insurance may create conflicts of interest, and we cannot be certain that all our transactions with Guarantee
Insurance will be conducted on the same terms as those available from unaffiliated third parties.
· We have acquired 17 insurance and other services firms in a short period of time and we have limited experience integrating the operations of
companies or businesses that we have acquired and may incur substantial costs in connection therewith which could adversely affect our
growth and results of operations.
· If we fail to grow our business organically we may be unable to execute our business plan or adequately address competitive challenges.
· If we cannot sustain our relationships with independent retail agencies, we may be unable to operate profitably.
· Changes in the healthcare industry could adversely impact our performance.
· Our geographic concentration ties our performance to business, economic and regulatory conditions in certain states, and unfavorable
conditions in these states could have a significant adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
· We are subject to extensive regulation and supervision, and our failure to comply with such regulation or adapt to new regulatory and
legislative initiatives may adversely impact our business.
· Our goodwill and intangible assets could become impaired, which could lead to material non-cash charges against earnings.
· Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition, our ability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, our
ability to operate our business, our ability to react to changes in the economy or our industry and our ability to pay our debts and could
expose us to interest rate risk to the extent of our variable debt and divert our cash flow from operations to make debt payments.
· Servicing our indebtedness will require a significant amount of cash. Our ability to generate sufficient cash depends on many factors, some
of which are not within our control.
· Despite our current level of indebtedness, we may be able to incur substantially more debt and enter into other transactions, which could
further exacerbate the risks to our financial condition described above.
· We operate in a highly competitive industry, and others may have greater financial resources to compete effectively.
· We compete on the basis of the quality of our outcome-driven service model, and our failure to continue to perform at high levels could
adversely affect our business.
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· Our business is dependent on the efforts of our senior management and other key employees who leverage their industry expertise,
knowledge of our markets and services and relationships with independent retail agencies that sell the insurance products of our carrier
partners.
· We are reliant on our information processing systems, and any failure or inadequate performance of these systems could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
· Cyber-attacks or other security breaches involving our computer systems or the systems of one or more of our clients, independent retail
agencies or vendors could materially and adversely affect our business.
· If we infringe on the proprietary rights of others, our business operations may be disrupted, and any related litigation could be time
consuming and costly.
· We are, and may become, party to lawsuits or other claims that could adversely impact our business.
· Our founder, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer owns a significant percentage of our outstanding capital stock and will be able
to influence stockholder and management decisions, which may conflict with your interests as a stockholder.
· Future sales, or the perception of future sales, by us or our affiliates could cause the market price for our common stock to decline.
· There is an increased potential for short sales of our common stock due to the sales of shares issued upon exercise of warrants, which could
materially affect the market price of the stock.
· Certain provisions of the New Series A Warrants and New Series B Warrants provide for preferential treatment to the holders of the warrants
and could impede a sale of our company.
· Because we have no plans to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future, you may not receive any return on
investment unless you sell your common stock for a price greater than that which you paid for it.
· Our ability to raise capital in the future may be limited, which could make us unable to fund our capital requirements.
· If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they downgrade or provide negative outlook on our stock or
our sector, our stock price and trading volume could decline.
· We are an “emerging growth company”, and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth
companies will make our common stock less attractive to investors.
· We have incurred, and will continue to incur, increased costs, and are subject to additional regulations and requirements as a result of being
a public company, which could lower our profits or make it more difficult to run our business.
· Our internal controls over financial reporting may not be effective, and our independent registered public accounting firm may not be able to
certify as to their effectiveness, which could have a significant and material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations or prospects.
· Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documents could delay or prevent a change of control.
For a more detailed discussion of these factors, see the information under the heading “Risk Factors” herein and in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. Our forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this report or as of the date they are made,
and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements.
Terms Used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
Unless otherwise specified or the context requires otherwise, the following terms used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q have the meanings
ascribed to them below:
· references to “Patriot.” “Patriot National,” “the Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” refer to Patriot National, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries
unless the context requires otherwise;
· references to “AIG” refer to AIG Property Casualty Company, American Home Assurance Company, AIG Assurance Company, AIU
Insurance Company, Commerce and Industry Insurance Company, Granite State Insurance Company, Illinois National Insurance Co.,
National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, PA., New Hampshire Insurance Company, and The Insurance Company of the State of
Pennsylvania, collectively.
· references the “Back-to-Back agreement” refer to the agreement executed in connection with the PIPE between Mr. Mariano and the
Company effective as of December 13, 2015, pursuant to which we would purchase a number of shares of our common stock owned by Mr.
Mariano equal to 60% of the shares to be issued in connection with the exercise of the Old Warrants;
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· references to “bundled” services refer to arrangements where we provide two or more services to a client;
· references to “Guarantee Insurance” refer to Guarantee Insurance Company and references to “Guarantee Insurance Group” refer to
Guarantee Insurance Group, Inc. (f/k/a Patriot National Insurance Group, Inc.), the parent company of Guarantee Insurance, entities that are
both controlled by Steven M. Mariano, our founder, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer;
· references to the “GUI Acquisition” refer to our acquisition, effective August 6, 2014, of contracts to provide marketing, underwriting and
policyholder services and related assets and liabilities from a subsidiary of Guarantee Insurance Group;
· references to the “New Series A Warrants”, the “New Series B Warrants” or together, the “New Warrants” refer to the warrants issued to the
PIPE Investors pursuant to the rescission and exchange agreements entered into on December 23, 2015 whereby the Old Warrants were
exchanged for the New Warrants;
· references to the “Old Series A Warrants”, the “Old Series B Warrants” or together, the “Old Warrants” refer to the warrants issued to the
PIPE Investors pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement effective December 13, 2015 by and among Mr. Mariano, the Company and
the PIPE Investors;
· references to the “Patriot Care Management Acquisition” refer to our acquisition, effective August 6, 2014, of a business that provides nurse
case management and bill review services (the “Patriot Care Management Business”);
· references to the “PennantPark Entities” refer to PennantPark Investment Corporation, PennantPark Floating Rate Capital Ltd., PennantPark
SBIC II LP and PennantPark Credit Opportunities Fund LP;
· references to the “PennantPark Debt” refer to debt pursuant to the PennantPark Loan Agreement;
· references to the “PennantPark Loan Agreement” refer to the amended and restated first lien term loan agreement, dated as of August 6, 2014
between, among others, us and certain of our subsidiaries, as borrowers, certain of our other subsidiaries and certain affiliated entities, as
guarantors, and the PennantPark Entities, as lenders;
· references to the “PIPE” refer to the private investments made by Tenor Capital Management (through Alto Opportunity Master Fund, SPC),
Heights Capital Management (through CVI Investments, Inc.) and Hudson Bay Capital Management (through Hudson Bay Master Fund
Ltd.) (together the “PIPE Investors”) in December 2015;
· references to “reference premiums written” refer to the aggregate premiums, grossed up for large deductible credits, written by or for our
insurance carrier partners in respect of the policies we produce and service on their behalf;
· references to “reinsurance captives” or “reinsurance captive entities” refer to segregated portfolio cell captive entities that assume
underwriting risk written initially by an insurance carrier client;
· references to “turnkey” refer to arrangements where we provide both front-end services such as brokerage, underwriting and policyholder
service, and back-end services such as claims adjudication and administration services to an insurance carrier client;
· references to the “UBS Credit Agreement” refer to the credit agreement, dated as of August 6, 2014 between, among others, us and certain of
our subsidiaries, the lenders party thereto and UBS Securities LLC, as lead arranger, bookmanager, documentation agent and syndication
agent
· references to the “UBS Debt” refer to debt pursuant to the UBS Credit Agreement; and
· references to “Zurich” refer to Zurich American Insurance Company, Zurich American Insurance Company of Illinois, American Guarantee
and Liability Insurance Company, American Zurich Insurance Company, Steadfast Insurance Company, Empire Fire & Marine Insurance
Company, Empire Indemnity Insurance Company, Maryland Casualty Company, Assurance Company of America, Maryland Insurance
Company, Northern Insurance Company of New York, The Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland, Colonial American Casualty and
Surety Company, Universal Underwriters Insurance Company, Universal Underwriters Life Insurance Company, Universal Underwriters of
Texas Insurance Company, Zurich Insurance Company Canadian Branch collectively.
Overview
Business
We are an independent national provider of comprehensive technology-enabled insurance and employer solutions. Our products and services
help insurance carriers, employers and other clients mitigate risk, comply with complex regulations and save time and money. We offer end-to-end
insurance-related and specialty services that allow our clients to improve efficiencies and reduce
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expenses through our value-added processes. The core of our value proposition includes the benefit of a “one-stop” solution with our broad array
of offered services, scalable state-of-the-art technology, and support for complex business and regulatory processes.
We principally offer two types of services: front-end services, such as brokerage, underwriting and policyholder services, and back-end
services, such as claims adjudication and administration. We provide our services either on an individual basis, as bundles of two or more services
tailored to a client’s specific needs, or on a turnkey basis where we provide a comprehensive set of front-end and back-end services to a client. We
also offer specialty services currently including technology outsourcing and other IT services, as well as employment pre-screening and
background checks.
We generate fee revenue for our services from our clients based on (1) a percentage of premiums for the policies we service, (2) the cost
savings we achieve for our clients or (3) a fixed fee for a particular service. Unlike our insurance and reinsurance carrier clients, we do not generate
underwriting income or assume underwriting risk on workers’ compensation plans.
Recent Events
On March 3, 2016, the Board of Directors approved a $15 million stock repurchase program. Under the new Repurchase Program, the Company
may repurchase up to a maximum of $15 million of its common stock. Pursuant to the Fourth Amendment to the BMO Credit Facility, the Company
may purchase no more than 1,000,000 shares in any calendar month. Total purchases under the plan as of June 30, 2016 were 1,360,457 shares for a
purchase price of $8.7 million in the open market. As of June 30, 2016, all 1,360,457 of the repurchased shares have been retired and none remain as
treasury shares.
On April 13, 2016, Hudson Bay Master Fund Ltd. (“Hudson Bay”) filed suit in the US District Court for the Southern District of New York
against the Company, Steven M. Mariano, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and American Stock Transfer Company, LLC as a nominal
Defendant. Hudson Bay alleges that the Company and Mr. Mariano are in breach of various contracts regarding delivery of price adjustment
warrants, and that Mr. Mariano interfered with those same contracts between the Company and Hudson Bay. Hudson Bay seeks specific
performance of the contracts, monetary damages, and attorney’s fees. On April 14, 2016, CVI Investments Inc.(“CVI”), also filed suit against the
Company in the same court. The CVI suit makes similar allegations of breach of contract regarding the price adjustment warrants. The CVI suit
similarly seeks specific performance of the contracts, monetary damages, and attorney’s fees, as well as injunctive relief.
The Company has filed answers in both actions denying the allegations and asserting defenses. The Company has been indemnified for any
losses related to the warrant agreements by Mr. Mariano.
On August1, 2016, the Issuer stated that a special committee of independent directors (the “Special Committee”) of the Board received and is
considering an offer from Ebix, Inc. (“Ebix”) to acquire 100% of the outstanding stock of the Issuer. The Special Committee is continuing to explore
other strategic alternatives for the Issuer to maximize value for shareholders, including a possible sale of the Issuer. Neither the Board nor the
Special Committee has made a decision to enter into any transaction or other alternative.

Key Performance Measures
We use certain key performance measures in evaluating our business and results of operations, and we may refer to one or more of these key
performance measures in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” These key performance
measures include:
· Gross reference premium written: gross reference premium written refers to the aggregate premium, grossed up for large deductible credits,
written by or for our insurance carrier partners in respect of the policies we produce and service on their behalf.
· Reference premium written: reference premium written refers to the earned aggregate premium, grossed up for large deductible credits,
written by or for our insurance carrier partners in respect of the policies we produce and service on their behalf. For Guarantee Insurance,
which records written premium on the effective date of the policy based on the estimated total premium for the term of the policy, reference
written premium is equal to written premium based on the estimated total premium for the term of the policy, earned as of the effective date of
the policy, grossed up for large deductible credits. Subsequent adjustments to the estimated total premium for the term of the policy are
reflected as adjustments to reference written premium when the adjustments become known. For our third party insurance carrier clients, for
whom record written premium as premium is collected, reference written premium is equal to collected premium, grossed up for large
deductible credits. We evaluate our business (in respect of revenue both from brokerage and policyholder services and from claims
administrative services) both in respect of the overall revenue generated by reference premium written, and the margin on such revenue. With
respect to our brokerage and policyholder services, changes in reference premium written generally correspond to changes in total revenues.
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The policies we write for our insurance and reinsurance carrier clients generally have a term of one year, and reference premium written is
earned by our insurance and reinsurance carrier clients on a pro rata basis over the terms of the underlying policies. Likewise, the claims
associated with these policies are generally incurred on a pro rata basis over the terms of the underlying policies. Generally, we perform our
claims administration services on a claim from the date it is incurred through the date it is closed. We refer to claims that have been incurred,
but not yet closed, for a particular period as “managed claims exposures.” With respect to our claims administration services, changes in
managed claims exposures generally correspond to changes in total revenues.
· Adjusted EBITDA: we define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) adjusted for income tax expense (benefit), interest expense, depreciation
and amortization expense, and certain non-cash and/or non-recurring transactions as shown in the Reconciliation from Net Income(Loss) to
Adjusted EBITDA .
· Adjusted EBITDA Margins: we define Adjusted EBITDA Margins as Adjusted EBITDA divided by the sum of fee income and fee income
from related party.
· Operating Cash Flow: we define Operating Cash Flow as Adjusted EBITDA less income tax expense, interest expense, and capital
expenditures.
· Adjusted Earnings (Loss): we define Adjusted Earnings (Loss) and Adjusted Earnings (Loss) per share as net income (loss) adjusted for
cost for debt payoff, non-cash stock compensation costs, net realized gains (losses) on investments, increase (decrease) in fair value of
warrant redemption liability, acquisition costs and loss on exchange of units and warrants.
We present Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margins, Operating Cash Flow and Adjusted Earnings in this report because they are key
measures used by our management and board of directors to understand and evaluate our core operating performance and trends, to prepare and
approve our annual budget and to develop short and long-term operational plans. In particular, we believe that the exclusion of the amounts
eliminated in calculating Adjusted EBITDA, Operating Cash Flow and Adjusted Earnings can provide useful measures for period-to-period
comparisons of our core business. Accordingly, we believe that Adjusted EBITDA, Operating Cash Flow and Adjusted Earnings provide useful
information to investors and others in understanding and evaluating our operating results in the same manner as our management and board of
directors.
Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margins, Operating Cash Flow and Adjusted Earnings have limitations as analytical tools, and should
not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our financial results under GAAP. Some of these limitations are as follows:
· Although depreciations and amortization expense are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized may have to be replaced
in the future;
· Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs or tax payments that may represent a
reduction in cash available to us; and
· Other companies, including companies in our industry, may calculate Adjusted EBITDA, Operating Cash Flow and Adjusted Earnings or
similarly titled measured differently, which reduce their usefulness as a comparative measure.
Reference Premium Written

Three Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

In thousands

Gross Reference Premium Written
Reference Premium Written

$
$

121,836
124,739

$
$

102,100
103,048

Six Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

$
$

266,179
272,992

$
$

221,622
206,050

Gross reference premium written for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $121.8 million compared to $102.1 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $19.7 million. The increase was attributable to the inception of new contracts with AIG and certain other
insurance carrier clients, which generated an increase in gross reference premium of $34.5 million, and an increase in Zurich of $2.2 million for the
three months, which was partially offset by a decrease of $9.6 million with Scottsdale and a decrease of $7.4 million with Guarantee Insurance.
Gross reference premium written for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $266.2 million compared to $221.6 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2015, an increase $44.6 million. The increase was attributable to the inception of new contracts with AIG and certain other insurance carrier
clients, which generated an increase in gross reference premium of $68.1 million, and an increase in Zurich of $6.2 million for the six months, which
was partially offset by a decrease of $16.3 million with Scottsdale and a decrease of $13.5 million with Guarantee Insurance.
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Reference premium written for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $124.7 million compared to $103.0 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2015, an increase of $21.7 million The increase was attributable to the inception of new contracts with AIG and certain other insurance
carrier clients, which generated an increase in reference premium written of $32.5 million, and was partially offset by a decrease of $3.4 million with
Scottsdale and a decrease of $7.4 million with Guarantee Insurance.
Reference premium written for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $273.0 million compared to $206.1 million for the six months ended June
30, 2015, an increase of $66.9 million The increase was attributable to the inception of new contracts with AIG and certain other insurance carrier
clients, which generated an increase in reference premium written of $84.6 million, and was partially offset by a decrease of $2.8 million with Zurich,
a decrease of $1.4 million with Scottsdale and a decrease of $13.5 million with Guarantee Insurance.
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure and is not in accordance with, or an alternative to, the GAAP information provided in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. For further information regarding our use of non-GAAP financial measures and a reconciliation of Adjusted
EBITDA to Net income (loss), see “—Reconciliations to Non-GAAP Key Performance Measures”.

Three Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

In thousands

Net income (loss)
Adjusted EBITDA

$
$

14,159
10,681

$
$

1,020
11,381

Six Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

$
$

17,560
26,340

$
$

(3,796 )
22,209

Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $10.7 million compared to $11.4 million for the three months ended June 30,
2015, a decrease of $0.7 million. The decrease was attributable to a $9.8 million increase in total expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization,
changes in fair value of warrant liabilities, non-cash stock compensation, severance expense, acquisition costs, public offering costs, costs related
to the extinguishment of debt, interest expense, fair value of earn-out liability adjustment and income tax expense which are added back to net
income to arrive at Adjusted EBITDA), partially offset by a $9.1 million increase in total fee income and fee income from related party, all of which
are discussed more fully below.
Adjusted EBITDA for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $26.3 million compared to $22.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, an
increase of $4.1 million. The increase was attributable to a $30.9 million increase in total fee income and fee income from related party, partially offset
by a $26.8 million increase in total expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization, changes in fair value of warrant liabilities, non-cash stock
compensation, severance expense, acquisition costs, public offering costs, costs related to the extinguishment of debt, interest expense, and
income tax expense which are added back to net income to arrive at Adjusted EBITDA), all of which are discussed more fully below.
Operating Cash Flow
Operating cash flow is a non-GAAP financial measure and is not in accordance with, or an alternative to, the GAAP information provided in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. For further information regarding our use of non-GAAP financial measures and a reconciliation of Operating cash
flow to Net income (loss), see “—Reconciliations to Non-GAAP Key Performance Measures”.

Three Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

In thousands

Net income (loss)
Net cash provided by operating activities
Operating cash flow

$
$
$

14,159
4,589
8,478

$
$
$

1,020
3,707
9,152

Six Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

$
$
$

17,560
23,243
21,653

$
$
$

(3,796 )
4,644
17,666

Operating cash flow for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $8.5 million compared to $9.2 million for the three months ended June 30,
2015, a decrease of $0.7 million. Operating cash flow is defined as Adjusted EBITDA, less income tax expense, interest expense, and capital
expenditures. The decrease was primarily attributable to the $0.7 million decrease in Adjusted EBITDA described above for the three months ended
June 30, 2016.
Operating cash flow for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $21.7 million compared to $17.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015,
an increase of $4.0 million. Operating cash flow is defined as Adjusted EBITDA, less income tax expense, interest
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expense, and capital expenditures. The increase was primarily attributable to the $4.1 million increase in Adjusted EBITDA described above for the
six months ended June 30, 2016.
Adjusted Earnings
Adjusted Earnings is a non-GAAP financial measure and is not in accordance with, or an alternative to, the GAAP information provided in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. For further information regarding our use of non-GAAP financial measures and a reconciliation of Operating cash
flow to Net income (loss), see “—Reconciliations to Non-GAAP Key Performance Measures”.

Three Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

In thousands

Net income (loss)
Adjusted earnings

$
$

14,159
2,798

$
$

1,020
4,490

Six Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

$
$

17,560
8,597

$
$

(3,796 )
8,917

Adjusted Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2016 were $2.8 million as compared to $4.5 million for the three months ended June 30,
2015, a decrease of $1.7 million. The decrease was attributable to a $10.8 million increase in total expenses (excluding changes in fair value of
warrant liabilities, non-cash stock compensation, severance expense, acquisition costs, public offering costs, and costs related to the
extinguishment of debt which are added back to net income to arrive at Adjusted Earnings), partially offset by $9.1 million increase in total fee
income and fee income from related party, all of which are discussed more fully below.
Adjusted Earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2016 were $8.6 million as compared to $8.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, a
decrease of $0.3 million. The decrease was attributable to a $31.1 million increase in total expenses (excluding changes in fair value of warrant
liabilities, non-cash stock compensation, severance expense, acquisition costs, public offering costs, and costs related to the extinguishment of
debt which are added back to net income to arrive at Adjusted Earnings), partially offset by $30.8 million increase in total fee income and fee income
from related party, all of which are discussed more fully below.
Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain combined statement of operations data derived from our unaudited combined financial statements
included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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Three Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

In thousands

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data
Revenues
Fee income
Fee income from related party
Total fee income and fee income from related party
Net investment income
Net realized losses on investments
Total Revenues
Expenses
Salaries and related expenses
Commission expense
Outsourced services
Other operating expenses
Acquisition costs
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Stock compensation expense
Decrease in fair value of earn-out liability
Decrease in fair value of warrant redemption liability
Costs related to extinguishment of debt
Total Expenses
Net Income (Loss) before income tax (benefit) expense
Income tax (benefit) expense
Net Income (Loss) Including Non-Controlling Interest in
Subsidiary
Net Income attributable to Non-controlling interest
in subsidiary
Net Income (Loss)

$

40,483
15,987
56,470
—
—
56,470

26,932
20,456
47,388
35
(91 )
47,332

$

80,900
40,437
121,337
35
(295 )
121,077

$

45,301
45,079
90,380
36
(91 )
90,325

22,341
10,991
3,625
9,501
411
1,376
4,700
1,277
(1,932 )
—
—
52,290
4,180
(10,007 )

17,765
8,494
2,792
6,954
2,315
605
3,392
3,670
—
—
—
45,987
1,345
288

45,981
24,127
7,195
19,298
1,025
2,788
9,417
2,701
(1,932 )
—
—
110,600
10,477
(7,148 )

32,233
17,383
5,254
13,285
2,919
1,863
5,695
6,205
—
(1,385 )
13,681
97,133
(6,808 )
(3,064 )

14,187

1,057

17,625

(3,744 )

28
14,159

$

$

Six Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

$

37
1,020

$

65
17,560

$

52
(3,796 )

Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared to Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2015
Revenues:
Total Fee Income and Fee Income from Related Party. Total fee income and fee income from related party for the three months ended June 30,
2016 was $56.5 million compared to $47.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $9.1 million or approximately 19%. The
increase in fee income and fee income from related party was primarily related to increases in the volume of business we managed and from
acquisitions completed since January 2015.
Total fee income and fee income from related party for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $121.3 million compared to $90.4 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $30.9 million or approximately 34%. The increase in fee income and fee income from related party
was primarily related to increases in the volume of business we managed and from acquisitions completed since January 2015.
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, approximately 55% and 59% of our total fee income and fee income from related party was
attributable to our contracts with Guarantee Insurance, a related party, and approximately 6% of our total fee income and fee income from related
party was attributable to contracts with our second largest client for both the three and six months ended June 30, 2016.
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 approximately 70% and 76% of our total fee income and fee income from related party was
attributable to our contracts with Guarantee Insurance, and approximately 9% of our total fee income and fee income from related party were
attributable to our contracts with our second largest client for both the three and six months ended June 30, 2015.
Fee Income. Fee income, which represents fee income from non-related parties, for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $40.5 million
compared to $26.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $13.6 million or 50%. For the six months ended June 30, 2016 and
June 30, 2015, fee income was $80.9 million versus $45.3 million, an increase of $35.6 million or 79%.
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Our prices by customer for our brokerage and policyholder services and claims administration services were unchanged for the six-month period
ended June 30, 2016 relative to the six-month period ended June 30, 2015, and, accordingly, the net increase in fee income was solely related to
changes in the volume of business we managed.
Fee Income from Related Party. Fee income from related party for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $16.0 million compared to $20.5
million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, a decrease of $4.5 million. For the six months ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015 fee income
from related party was $40.4 million versus $45.1 million, a decrease of $4.6 million.
Our prices by customer for our brokerage and policyholder services and claims administration services were unchanged for the three and sixmonth period ended June 30, 2016 relative to the three and six-month period ended June 30, 2015, and accordingly, the net increase in fee income
was solely related to changes in the volume of business we managed.
“Fee income from related party” represents a portion of fee income earned from Guarantee Insurance, a related party as described in Note 12,
Related Party Transactions. Fee income from Guarantee Insurance for claims administration services is based on the net portion of claims expense
retained by Guarantee Insurance pursuant to quota share reinsurance agreements between Guarantee Insurance, PUI’s third party insurance
company customers and the segregated portfolio cell reinsurers that assume business written by Guarantee Insurance. Certain fee income from
third-party segregated portfolio cell reinsurers is remitted to the Company by Guarantee Insurance on behalf of the segregated portfolio cell
reinsurers. Fee income from Guarantee Insurance for brokerage, underwriting and policyholder services represents fees for soliciting applications
for workers’ compensation insurance for Guarantee Insurance, based on a percentage of premiums written or other amounts negotiated by the
parties.
Because fee income from related party for claims administration services is based on the net portion of claims expense retained by Guarantee
Insurance, as described in Note 13, Concentration, the Company’s revenues attributable to contracts with Guarantee Insurance do not necessarily
represent fee income from related party.
Net Investment Income. Net investment income was $0 for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $35 thousand for the three months
ended June 30, 2015. For the three months ended June 30, 2016, the net loss on investments was $0 million compared to $91 thousand for the three
months ended June 30, 2015.
Net investment income was $35 thousand for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to $36 thousand for the six months ended June 30,
2015. For the three months ended June 30, 2016, the net loss on investments was $295 thousand compared to $91 thousand for the six months
ended June 30, 2015.
Expenses:
Salaries and Related Expenses. Salaries and related expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2016 were $22.3 million compared to $17.8
million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $4.5 million.
Salaries and related expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2016 were $46.0 million compared to $32.2 million for the six months ended June
30, 2015, an increase of $13.8 million.
This increase was principally driven by additional headcount incurred to increase revenue, both organically and through acquisition.
Commission Expense. Commission expense for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $11.0 million compared to $8.5 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $2.5 million. This increase was a direct result of the increased fee income and fee income from related
party recognized as a result of the increased volume in the business we manage.
Commission expense for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $24.1 million compared to $17.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015,
an increase of $6.7 million. This increase was a direct result of the increased fee income and fee income from related party recognized as a result of
the increased volume in the business we manage.
Outsourced Services. Outsourced services for the three months ended June 30, 2016 were $3.6 million compared to $2.8 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $0.8 million. This increase was principally due to the services that are outsourced by Global HR
Research LLC, an acquisition made as of August 31, 2015.
Outsourced services for the six months ended June 30, 2016 were $7.2 million compared to $5.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, an
increase of $1.9 million. This increase was principally due to the services that are outsourced by Global HR Research LLC, an acquisition made as of
August 31, 2015.
Other Operating Expenses. Other operating expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2016 were $9.5 million compared to $7.0 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $2.5 million.
Other operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2016 were $19.2 million compared to $13.3 million for the six months ended June 30,
2015, an increase of $5.9 million.
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The increase of other operating expense corresponds to the increased volume in business we manage.
Acquisition Costs. For the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, we incurred $0.4 million and $2.3 million of acquisition costs. For the six
months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, we incurred $1.0 million and $2.9 million of acquisition costs. These costs were predominantly comprised of
salary and related expenses, professional costs and other fees associated with acquisition activities.
Interest Expense. Interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $1.4 million compared to $0.6 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $0.8 million. Interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $2.8 million compared to $1.9 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $0.9 million. The increase was attributable to higher average outstanding debt balances as well
as the amortization of deferred loan costs associated with the amendments to our Senior Credit facility.
Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization for the three months ended June 30, 2016 was $4.7 million compared to $3.4
million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $1.3 million. Depreciation and amortization for the six months ended June 30, 2016
was $9.4 million compared to $5.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $3.7 million. The increase was attributable mainly to
the increased intangible asset amortization associated with our acquisitions.
Stock Compensation Expense. The Company recognized $1.3 million of stock compensation expense during the three months ended June 30,
2016 as compared to $3.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015. We recognized $2.7 million of stock compensation expense for the six
months ended June 30, 2016 as compared to $6.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015. Stock compensation expense is related to
restricted stock and stock option awards. See Note 10, Stock-Based Compensation, for further detail related to these awards and the recognized
expense.
Decrease (Increase) in Fair Value of Warrant Redemption Liability. There was a $3.1 million increase in the fair value of warrant redemption
liability for the three months ending June 30, 2016, which was fully offset by a corresponding $3.1 million increase in the fair value of the forward
purchase asset, which represents the Back-to-Back agreement. There was a $23.8 million increase in the fair value of warrant redemption liability for
the six months ending June 30, 2016, which was fully offset by a corresponding $23.8 million increase in the fair value of the forward purchase
asset, which represents the Back-to-Back agreement. These instruments are fully described in Note 12 Related Party and Note 15 Warrant
Redemption Liability. For the six months ended June 30, 2015 the decrease in fair value of warrant redemption liability was $1.4 million which
reflects the change in fair value from estimated valuation on December 31, 2014 to the exercise of the detachable common stock warrants associated
with Pennant Park on January 22, 2015. There was no remaining warrant redemption liability as of June 30, 2015 and no subsequent fair value
adjustments were required.
Costs from the Extinguishment of Debt. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, there was no expense related to the extinguishment of
debt as compared to $13.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015. The Company recognized expenses for “Make-Whole” payments upon
repayment of the PennantPark Debt and UBS Debt on January 22, 2015. These expenses were comprised of $3.8 million to the PennantPark Entities
and $0.5 million to UBS. Due to the magnitude of these expenses, they are presented separately from interest expense in our combined results for
the six months ended June 30, 2015. Additionally, the Company recognized $9.4 of costs from extinguishment of debt for the write-off of original
issued discounts and deferred financing related to the Pennant Park and UBS facilities.
Income Tax (Benefit) Expense. Income tax benefit was $10.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to income tax expense of
$0.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, an increase in income tax benefit of $10.3 million. Income tax benefit was $7.1 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to income tax benefit of $3.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, an increase in income tax
benefit of $4.0 million. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, the effective income tax rates were approximately 45% and 36%,
respectively. The effective tax rate is based on forecasted annual pre-tax income, permanent differences and statutory tax rates. The benefit for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2016 was attributable to the reversal of $12.5 million of valuation allowance of deferred tax assets as of June 30,
2016. Please refer to Note 16 – Income taxes for further discussion.
Net Income:
As a result of the factors described above, net income increased by $13.1 million to a net income of $14.1 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2016 as compared to net income of $1.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015. For the six months ended June 30, 2016 net
income was $17.6 million as compared to a net loss of $3.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $21.4 million
Seasonality
Although our revenue and operating results associated with our claims administration services are generally not subject to seasonality, our
revenue and operating results associated with our brokerage and policyholder services are generally subject to
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seasonal variations as a result of the distribution of renewal dates of existing policies throughout the year, with slightly more renewals occurring in
the first and third calendar quarter based on the current distribution of such dates.
Impact of Inflation
Although we cannot accurately anticipate the effect of inflation on our operations, we believe that inflation has not had a material impact on our
results of operations during the last two fiscal years, nor do we believe it is likely to have such a material impact in the foreseeable future.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Funds
Our principal needs for liquidity have been, and for the foreseeable future will continue to be cash generated from operations, working capital,
capital expenditures and funding potential acquisitions, potential redemption of detachable common stock warrants, as well as servicing our Senior
Secured Credit Facility. Our primary sources of liquidity include cash flows from operations and available cash and cash equivalents.
We believe that our cash flow from operations and available cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs for the
foreseeable future. As of June 30, 2016, our unrestricted cash and cash equivalents were $12.1 million. In addition, as of June 30, 2016, restricted
cash was $20.8 million, which are funds we receive from our insurance carrier clients and are earmarked exclusively for payments of claims on behalf
of such clients. We cannot use restricted cash for other purposes.
To the extent we require additional liquidity, we anticipate that it will be funded through the incurrence of other indebtedness (which may
include capital markets indebtedness, our Senior Secured Credit Facility or indebtedness under other credit facilities), equity financings or a
combination thereof. Although we have no specific current plans to do so, if we decide to pursue one or more significant acquisitions, we may
incur additional debt or sell additional equity to finance such acquisitions.
Cash Flows
The following table summarizes our cash flow activities for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Three Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

In thousands

Cash flow activities:
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Net Cash Used in Investment Activities
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

$

4,589 $
(3,066 )
(1,180 )

3,707
(44,713 )
39,594

Six Months Ended June 30,
2016
2015

$

23,243
(13,016 )
(6,482 )

$

4,644
(57,677 )
58,675

Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $23.2 million compared to $4.6 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $18.6 million. The increase was largely attributable to favorable working capital due to payments made in 2015
related to the 2014 tax year, as well as an increase in cash earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2016 as compared to June 30, 2015.
Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $13.0 million compared to $57.7 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2015, a decrease of $44.7 million. This decrease was attributable to funding of acquisitions of $9.0 million in 2016 from $47.5 million in 2015,
a decrease of $38.5 million, the purchase of fixed assets and other long-term assets of $2.2 million in 2016 from $2.8 million in 2015, a decrease of $0.6
million, an increase in restricted cash of $4.7 million in 2016 from $4.0 million in 2015, an increase of $0.7 million, an increase in the proceeds from the
sale of equity securities of $3.2 million in 2016, net of $0.3 million used for the purchase of equity securities 2016 compares with $0.3 million dollar
sale of equity securities net of $3.6 million used for the purchase of equity securities as of June 30, 2015.
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Financing Activities
Net cash used by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2016 was $6.4 million compared to net cash provided by financing
activity of $58.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, a decrease of $65.1 million. This decrease was attributable to $9.5 million of
payments made in connection with acquisition earn-outs and $8.7 million for the repurchase of our common stock in 2016, net of $13.2 million in
proceeds from borrowings under our revolving credit facility and $1.2 million in capital lease payments.
Capital Expenditures
For the six months ended June 30, 2016, we made capital expenditures of $2.2 million attributable to $0.6 million of fixed assets and $1.6 million of
capitalized software development. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, we made capital expenditures of $2.8 million attributable to $1.1 million
of fixed assets and $1.7 million of capitalized software development.
Indebtedness
As of June 30, 2016, we had $103.8 million of term loan debt outstanding under our Senior Secured Credit Facility reduced by deferred loan fees
of $2.2 million, $33.9 million outstanding under our revolving credit facility, and we had $6.1 million available to borrow under the revolving credit.
We had $1.0 million of capital leases outstanding as of June 30, 2016.
Senior Secured Credit Facility
On January 22, 2015, we entered into a credit agreement which provides for a $40.0 million revolving credit facility and a $40.0 million term loan
facility (the “Senior Secured Credit Facility”). The Senior Secured Credit Facility has a maturity of five years, and borrowings thereunder bear
interest, at our option, at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 250 basis points to 325 basis points or at base rate plus a margin ranging from 150 basis
points to 225 basis points. Margins on all loans and fees will be increased by 2% per annum during the existence of an event of default. The
revolving credit facility includes borrowing capacity available for letters of credit and borrowings on same-day notice, referred to as swing line
loans. At any time prior to maturity, we have the right to increase the size of the revolving credit facility or the term loan facility by an aggregate
amount of up to $20.0 million, but in minimum increments of $5.0 million.
As of June 30, 2015, we increased the term loan facility by $20.0 million through two $10.0 million incremental term loans. On August 14, 2015, we
entered into a second amendment to the Senior Secured Credit Facility (the “Second Amendment”) which provides for an additional $50.0 million of
term loans plus the ability to increase the term loan by an additional $50.0 million under certain conditions. The Second Amendment also added a
requirement that until the we deliver a certificate certifying that (a) our total leverage ratio is equal to or less than 2.25 to 1.00 and (b) our Adjusted
EBITDA for the twelve-months then ended is at least $70.0 million, the outstanding revolving loans (plus any swing line loans and the aggregate
stated amount of all letters of credit) shall not exceed $30.0 million. On December 23,2015 we entered into a third amendment, which permits Patriot
to exercise the provisions of the Rescission and Exchange Agreement for the private placement of company stock and warrants, and related Backto-Back Agreement with the selling shareholder, as described in Related Party transactions. On March 3, 2016, we entered into a fourth amendment,
which permits Patriot to repurchase shares of its outstanding common stock pursuant to certain volume and timing limitations. All other material
terms and conditions in the Senior Secured Credit Facility were unchanged by the amendments.
In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the Senior Secured Credit Facility, we are required to pay a commitment fee to the
Administrative Agent for the ratable benefit of the lenders under the revolving credit facility in respect of the unutilized commitments thereunder,
ranging from 35 basis points to 50 basis points, depending on specified leverage ratios. With respect to letters of credit, we are also required to pay
a per annum participation fee equal to the applicable LIBOR margin on the face amount of each letter of credit as well as a fee equal to 0.125% on
the face amount of each letter of credit issued (or the term of which is extended). This latter 0.125% fee is payable to the issuer of the letter of credit
for its own account, along with any standard documentary and processing charges incurred in connection with any letter of credit.
The term loan facility amortizes quarterly beginning the first full quarter after the closing date at a rate of 5% per annum of the original principal
amount during the first two years, 7.5% per annum of the original principal amount during the third and fourth years and 10% per annum of the
original principal amount during the fifth year, with the remainder due at maturity. Principal amounts outstanding under the revolving credit facility
are due and payable in full at maturity. In the event of any sale or other disposition by us or our subsidiaries guaranteeing the Senior Secured
Credit Facility of any assets with certain exceptions, we are required to prepay all proceeds received from such a sale towards the remaining
scheduled payments of the term loan facility.
In addition, all obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facility are guaranteed by all of our existing and future subsidiaries, other than
foreign subsidiaries to the extent the assets of such foreign subsidiaries do not exceed 5% of our and our subsidiaries’ total assets on a combined
basis, and secured by a first-priority perfected security interest in substantially all of our and our guaranteeing
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subsidiaries’ tangible and intangible assets, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, including a pledge of 100% of the stock of each guarantor.
The Senior Secured Credit Facility contains certain covenants that, among other things and subject to significant exceptions, limit our ability
and the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to engage in certain business and financing activities and that require us to maintain certain financial
covenants, including requirements to maintain (i) a maximum total leverage ratio of total outstanding debt to adjusted EBITDA for the most recently
ended four fiscal quarters of no more than 300% and (ii) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of adjusted EBITDA to the sum of cash interest
expense (which amount shall be calculated on an annualized basis for the three-, six- and nine-month periods ended March 31, 2016, June 30, 2016
and September 30, 2016) plus income tax expense (or less any income tax benefits) plus capital expenditures plus dividends, share repurchases and
other restricted payments plus regularly scheduled principal payments of debt for the same period of a least 150% for the most recently-ended four
quarters. The Senior Secured Credit Facility allows us to pay dividends in an amount up to 50% of our net income if certain other financial
conditions are met.
The Senior Secured Credit Facility contains other restrictive covenants, including those regarding: indebtedness (including capital leases) and
guarantees; liens; operating leases; investments and acquisitions; loans and advances; mergers, consolidations and other fundamental changes;
sales of assets; transactions with affiliates; no material changes in nature of business; dividends and distributions, stock repurchases, and other
restricted payments; change in name, jurisdiction of organization or fiscal year; burdensome agreements; and capital expenditures.
The Senior Secured Credit Facility also has events of default that may result in acceleration of the borrowings thereunder, including:
(i) nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts (subject to customary grace periods for items other than principal); (ii) failure to perform
or observe covenants set forth in the loan documentation (subject to customary grace periods for certain affirmative covenants); (iii) any
representation or warranty proving to have been incorrect in any material respect when made; (iv) cross-default to other indebtedness and
contingent obligations in an aggregate amount in excess of an amount to be agreed upon; (v) bankruptcy and insolvency defaults (with grace
period for involuntary proceedings); (vi) inability to pay debts; (vii) monetary judgment defaults in excess of an agreed upon amount; (viii) ERISA
defaults; (ix) change of control; (x) actual invalidity or unenforceability of any loan document, any security interest on any material portion of the
collateral or asserted (by any loan party) invalidity or unenforceability of any security interest on any collateral; (xi) actual or asserted (by any loan
party) invalidity or unenforceability of any guaranty; (xii) material unpaid, final judgments that have not been vacated, discharged, stayed or
bonded pending appeal within a specified number of days after the entry thereof; and (xiii) any other event of default agreed to by us and the
Administrative Agent.
As of June 30, 2016, we were in compliance with the financial and other restrictive covenants under our outstanding material debt obligations,
including our Senior Secured Credit Facility.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition,
changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.
The Company has employment agreements with certain executives and other employees, which provide for compensation and certain other
benefits and for severance payments under certain circumstances. The employment agreements contain clauses that become effective upon a
change of control of the Company. Upon the occurrence of any of the defined events in the employment agreements, the Company would be
obligated to pay certain amounts to the relevant employees.
The Company maintains cash at various financial institutions, and, at times, balances may exceed federal insured limits. Management does not
believe this results in any material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. In the normal course of business, the
Company may be party to various legal actions that management believes will not result in any material effect on the Company’s financial position
or results of operations.
Effect of Recently Issued Financial Accounting Standards
In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-09, “Improvements to
Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting”, an update to Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718, Compensation – Stock
Compensation. This new accounting guidance requires that all companies recognize the income tax effects of awards in the income statement when
the awards vest or are settled, rather than maintaining an additional paid-in capital (APIC) pool and recognizing the tax benefits in excess of
compensation costs through equity. As it relates to forfeitures, the guidance allows for companies to choose whether to continue to estimate
forfeitures or account for forfeitures as they occur. ASU 2016-09 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted and the new
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guidance may be applied either retrospectively or on a prospective basis. The Company is currently reviewing the guidance, and the impact from its
adoption on our consolidated financial statements cannot be determined at this time.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, intended to improve financial reporting about leasing transactions. ASU 2016-02 affects all
companies and other organizations that lease assets such as real estate, airplanes, and manufacturing equipment. ASU 2016-02 will require
organizations that lease assets—referred to as “lessees”—to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations
created by those leases. Under the new guidance, a lessee will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than
12 months. Consistent with current Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the recognition, measurement, and presentation of
expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike
current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the balance sheet—ASU 2016-02 will require both types of leases to be
recognized on the balance sheet. ASU 2016-02 also will require disclosures to help investors and other financial statement users better understand
the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. These disclosures include qualitative and quantitative requirements,
providing additional information about the amounts recorded in the financial statements.
ASU 2016-02 will take effect for public companies for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,
2018. For all other organizations, ASU 2016-02 will take effect for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early application will be permitted for all organizations. The Company is currently reviewing the impact
that implementing this guidance will have.
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes,” which simplifies the presentation of
deferred income taxes by requiring deferred tax assets and liabilities be classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet. The updated standard is
effective for us beginning on January 1, 2017 with early application permitted as of the beginning of any interim or annual reporting period. We
adopted the new guidance on January 1, 2016, it has not had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements other than reclassifying
current deferred tax assets and liabilities to noncurrent in the balance sheet. See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion
on income tax balances
In September 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-16, “Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments”, an update to ASC
Topic 805, Business Combinations. This update requires that an acquirer recognize adjustments to the provisional amounts that are identified
during the measurement period in the reporting period in which the adjusting amounts are determined. The amendment requires that the acquirer
record, in the same period’s financial statements, the effect on earnings of changes in depreciation, amortization, or other income effects, if any, as
a result of the change to the provisional amounts, calculated as if the accounting had been completed at the acquisition date. The amendments in
this update require an entity to present separately on the face of the income statement or disclose in the notes the portion of the amount recorded
in current period earnings by line item that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts
had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, including interim
periods within those fiscal years. The update should be applied prospectively to adjustments to provisional amounts that occur after the effective
date of this update with earlier application permitted for financial statements that have not been issued. We adopted this guidance as of January 1,
2016 and it has not had material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs”. The update requires that debt issuance
costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt
liability instead of being presented as an asset. The update requires retrospective application. ASU 2015-03 is effective for fiscal years, and interim
reporting periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015. We adopted this new guidance beginning January 1, 2016.
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15 regarding ASC Topic 205, Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern. The
updated guidance related to determining whether substantial doubt exists about an entity's ability to continue as a going concern. The amendment
provides guidance for determining whether conditions or events give rise to substantial doubt that an entity has the ability to continue as a going
concern within one year following issuance of the financial statements and requires specific disclosures regarding the conditions or events leading
to substantial doubt. The updated guidance is effective for annual reporting periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2016. Earlier adoption is permitted, but we do not anticipate electing early adoption. We do not expect the adoption of this
guidance to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 regarding ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard provides
principles for recognizing revenue for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers with the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASB issued a deferral of effective date for this standard. For public
companies this standard applies to annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim reporting periods within that
reporting period, and early adoption is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the accounting, transition and disclosure requirements of the
standard and cannot currently estimate the financial statement impact of adoption.
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JOBS Act
The JOBS Act contains provisions that, among other things, allow an emerging growth company to take advantage of specified reduced
reporting requirements. In particular, the JOBS Act provides that an emerging growth company can utilize the extended transition period provided
in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. We have elected to take advantage of such
extended transition period, and, as a result, we will not be required to comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on
which adoption of such standards is required for companies that are not emerging growth companies.
Reconciliations to Non-GAAP Key Performance Measures

Three Months Ended June
30,
2016

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015

2016

(In thousands)

Reconciliation from Net Income (Loss) to Adjusted EBITDA:
Net Income (Loss)
Income tax (benefit) expense
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
EBITDA
Net losses on investments
Public offering costs
Stock compensation expense
Acquisition costs
Non-recurring claims cost
Severance expense
Decrease in fair value of earn-out liability
Decrease in fair value of warrant redemption liability
Costs related to extinguishment of debt
Adjusted EBITDA
Calculation of Adjusted EBITDA margins:
Total Fee Income
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA margins

$

14,159
(10,007 )
1,376
4,700
10,228
—
81
1,277
411
300
316
(1,932 )
—
—
10,681

$
$

$

$

56,470
$
10,681
18.9 %

(In thousands)

1,020
288
605
3,392
5,305
91
—
3,670
2,315
—
—
—
—
—
11,381

$

$

47,388
$
11,381
24.0 %

Three Months Ended June
30,
2016

$

$

37

10,681
—
(1,216 )
(987 )
8,478

2015

$

$

17,560
(7,148 )
2,788
9,417
22,617
295
91
2,701
1,025
300
1,243
(1,932 )
—
—
26,340

$

$

121,337
$
26,340
21.7 %

(3,796 )
(3,064 )
1,863
5,695
698
91
—
6,205
2,919
—
—
—
(1,385 )
13,681
22,209
90,380
22,209
24.6 %

Six Months Ended June 30,
2016

(In thousands)

Reconciliation to Operating Cash Flow:
Adjusted EBITDA (calculated above)
Less: Income tax expense
Less: Cash interest expense (Interest expense less deferred loan fees)
Less: Purchase of fixed assets and other long-term assets
Operating cash flow

2015

2015

(In thousands)

11,381
(288 )
(546 )
(1,395 )
9,152

$

$

26,340
—
(2,476 )
(2,211 )
21,653

$

$

22,209
—
(1,719 )
(2,824 )
17,666

Three Months Ended June
30,
2016

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015

2016

(In thousands)

Reconciliation from Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities to
Operating Cash Flow:
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in:
Fee income receivable
Fee income receivable from related party
Other current assets
Decrease (increase) in:
Net payable to related parties
Deferred claims administration services income
Net advanced claims reimbursements
Income taxes payable, net of income tax benefit
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest in subsidiary
Public offering costs
Acquisition costs
Non-recurring claims cost
Severance expense
Early payment penalty on repayment of debt
Amortization of faciliation agreement
Deferred tax benefit from release of valuation allowance
Exercise of stock awards
Provision for uncollectible fee income
Purchase of fixed assets and other long-term assets
Operating cash flow

$

$

38

4,589

$

(In thousands)

3,707

(1,379 )
6,621
(184 )

4,495
2,863
580

1,208
(135 )
(709 )
(11,435 )
(2,563 )
(28 )
81
411
300
316
—
(230 )
12,529
157
(84 )
(987 )
8,478

44
(63 )
(2,965 )
77
(318 )
(37 )
—
2,315
—
—
—
—
—
—
(151 )
(1,395 )
9,152

$

2015

$

23,243

$

(996 )
203
537

$

1,123
896
(1,888 )
(7,903 )
(6,171 )
(65 )
91
1,025
300
1,243
—
(230 )
12,529
157
(230 )
(2,211 )
21,653

4,644

5,016
4,615
1,172

$

(1,703 )
147
(3,590 )
11,961
(8,677 )
(52 )
—
2,919
—
—
4,339
—
—
—
(301 )
(2,824 )
17,666

Three Months Ended June
30,
2016

Six Months Ended June 30,

2015

2016

(In thousands)

Reconciliation from Net (Loss) Income to Adjusted Earnings:
Net Income (Loss)
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest in subsidiary
Income tax (benefit) expense
Net income (loss) before income tax expense
Adjustments to Net income (loss) before income tax expense:
Net losses on investments
Public offering costs
Stock compensation expense
Acquisition costs
Non-recurring claims cost
Severance expense
Decrease in fair value of earn-out liability
Decrease in fair value of warrant redemption liability
Costs related to extinguishment of debt
Total
Adjusted net income before income tax expense
Income tax expense at statutory rate
Adjusted Net Income Including Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiary
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest in subsidiary
Adjusted Earnings
Calculation of Adjusted Earnings Per Common Share
Basic
Diluted
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding
Basic
Diluted
Statutory Tax Rate

ITEM 3.

$

$
$

14,159
28
(10,007 )
4,180
—
81
1,277
411
300
316
(1,932 )
—
—
453
4,633
1,807
2,826
28
2,798
0.11
0.11
26,390
26,639
39.0 %

$

$
$

2015

(In thousands)

1,020
37
288
1,345
91
—
3,670
2,315
—
—
—
—
—
6,076
7,421
2,894
4,527
37
4,490
0.17
0.17
26,390
26,793
39.0 %

$

$
$

17,560
65
(7,148 )
10,477
295
91
2,701
1,025
300
1,243
(1,932 )
—
—
3,723
14,200
5,538
8,662
65
8,597
0.32
0.32
26,898
27,063
39.0 %

$

$

(3,796 )
52
(3,064 )
(6,808 )
91
—
6,205
2,919
—
—
—
(1,385 )
13,681
21,511
14,703
5,734
8,969
52
8,917

$

0.35
0.34
25,601
25,919
39.0 %

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As of March 31, 2016, we were not subject to any material interest rate risk or credit risk, and we had no exposure to foreign currency risk.
ITEM 4.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act)
that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of
the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under
the Exchange Act) that occurred during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On April 13, 2016, Hudson Bay Master Fund Ltd. (“Hudson Bay”) filed suit in the US District Court for the Southern District of New York
against the Company, Steven M. Mariano, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and American Stock Transfer Company, LLC as a nominal
Defendant. Hudson Bay alleges that the Company and Mr. Mariano are in breach of various contracts regarding delivery of price adjustment
warrants, and that Mr. Mariano interfered with those same contracts between the Company and Hudson Bay. Hudson Bay seeks specific
performance of the contracts, monetary damages, and attorney’s fees. On April 14, 2016, CVI Investments Inc.(“CVI”), also filed suit against the
Company in the same court. The CVI suit makes similar allegations of breach of contract regarding the price adjustment warrants. The CVI suit
similarly seeks specific performance of the contracts, monetary damages, and attorney’s fees, as well as injunctive relief.
The Company has filed answers in both actions denying the allegations and asserting defenses. The Company has been indemnified for any
losses related to the warrant agreements by Mr. Mariano.

ITEM 1A.

RISK FACTORS

For a discussion of our potential risks and uncertainties, see the information under the heading “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2015.

ITEM 2.

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.

ITEM 3.

DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5.

OTHER INFORMATION

(a) None.
(b) None.
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ITEM 6.
Exhibit
Number

EXHIBITS
Exhibit Description

2.1

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of January 28, 2016 by and between Patriot Underwriters, Inc. and Mid Atlantic Insurance
Services, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.21 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 21, 2016 (File
No. 001-36804))

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Patriot National, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 22, 2015 (File no. 001-36804))

3.2

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Patriot National, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on January 22, 2015 (File no. 001-36804))

10.1

Credit Agreement, dated as of January 22, 2015, by and among Patriot National, Inc., the Lenders party thereto and BMO Harris Bank
N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 22, 2015 (File no. 001-36804))

10.2

First Amendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2015, by and among Patriot National, Inc., the lenders party thereto
and BMO Harris Bank N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed on August 14, 2015 (File no. 001-36804))

10.3

Third Amendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2015, by and among Patriot National, Inc., the lenders party
thereto and BMO Harris Bank N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on January 15, 2016 (File no. 333-209010))

10.4

Fourth Amendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as of March 3, 2016, by and among Patriot National, Inc., the lenders party thereto
and BMO Harris Bank N.A., as administrative agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed on March 21, 2016 (File No. 001-36804))

10.5

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2015, among Patriot National, Inc., Steven M. Mariano and the buyers
named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 14, 2015
(File no. 001-36804))

10.6

Stock Back-to-Back Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2015, between Patriot National, Inc. and Steven M. Mariano (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 14, 2015 (File no. 001-36804))

10.7

Rescission and Exchange Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2015, among Patriot National, Inc. and the investors named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2015 (File no. 00136804))

10.8

Amended and Restated Stock Back-to-Back Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2015, between Patriot National, Inc. and Steven M.
Mariano (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2015 (File no.
001-36804))

10.9

Form of Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on December 15, 2015 (File no. 001-36804))

10.10

Form of Voting Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 23, 2015 (File no. 001-36804))

10.11

Patriot National, Inc. Acquisition Incentive Plan Under the Patriot National, Inc. 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 12, 2015 (File no. 001-36804))

31.1

Certificate of Steven M. Mariano, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2

Certificate of Thomas C. Shields, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
41

32.1

Certificate of Steven M. Mariano, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished herewith)

32.2

Certificate of Thomas C. Shields, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished herewith)

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

*

This document has been identified as a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

The agreements and other documents filed as exhibits to this report are not intended to provide factual information or other disclosure other than
with respect to the terms of the agreements or other documents themselves, and you should not rely on them for that purpose. In particular, any
representations and warranties made by us in these agreements or other documents were made solely within the specific context of the relevant
agreement or document and may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
PATRIOT NATIONAL, INC.
Date: August 15, 2016

By:/s/ Thomas C. Shields
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
& Treasurer, Authorized Signatory
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Section 2: EX-31.1 (EX-31.1)
Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Steven M. Mariano, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2016 of Patriot National, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

c)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 15, 2016
/s/ Steven M. Mariano
Steven M. Mariano
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

(Back To Top)

Section 3: EX-31.2 (EX-31.2)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Thomas C. Shields, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2016 of Patriot National, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

c)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 15, 2016
/s/ Thomas C. Shields
Thomas C. Shields
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Section 4: EX-32.1 (EX-32.1)
Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY
ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Patriot National, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2016 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Steven M. Mariano, President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 15, 2016
/s/ Steven M. Mariano
Steven M. Mariano
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

(Back To Top)

Section 5: EX-32.2 (EX-32.2)
Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY
ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-Q of Patriot National, Inc. (the “Company”) for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2016 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Thomas C. Shields, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 15, 2016
/s/ Thomas C. Shields
Thomas C. Shields
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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